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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Spice Money Limited (formerly known as Spice Digital Limited)

Repoit on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spice Money Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Gther Comprehensive Income, Statement of Change in Equity, the Cash Flow
Staternent for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021,
its profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date. _

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence abtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year March 31, 2021. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters fo be communicated in our
report. .
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S. N. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Regponse
1. | Revenue Recognition How our audlt addressed the key audit matter:

For the financial year ended 31 March,
2021, the Company has recorded
revenue of Rs. 57,802 80 Lakhs. The
accounting policies for revenue
recognition are set out in Note 2.4 {¢)
and the different revenue streams of
the Company have been disclosed in
Note 23 to the financial statements.

It involves certain key judgements
relating to identification of distinct
performance obligations,
determination of fransaction price of
the identified performance obligations,
the appropriateness of the basis used
o measure revenue recoghized.
Revenue recognition is susceptible to
the higher risk that the revenue is
recognized when performance
obligation has not been completed.
This was an area of focus for our audit
and the area where significant audit
effort was directed.

Our audit approach consisted testing of the design
and operating effectiveness of the internal controls
and substantive testing as follows:

- Selected samples of revenue recognized, terms
and conditions of services rendered, and tested the
operaling effectiveness of the internal control,
relating to ideniification of the distinct perfformance
obligations and determination of transaction price.
We carried out a combination of procedures
involving enquiry and observation, re-performance
and inspection of evidence in respect of operation
of these confrols.

- Tested the relevant information technology
systems’ access and change management controls
relating to contracts and related information used
in recording revenue,

- Selected samples of revenue recognized, terms
and conditions of services rendered, and
performed the following procedures:

— Read, analyzed and identified the distinct
performance obligations in these services.

— Compared these performance obligations with
that identified and recorded by the Company.

— Considered the terms of the commercials to
determine the transaction price including any
variable consideration to verify the transaction
price used to compute revenue and to test the basis
of estimation of the variable consideration.

— Samples in respect of revenue recorded for time
and material contracts were tested using a
cambination of customer acceptances, subsequent
invoicing and historical trend of coliections and
disputes.

— Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and
service offerings were tested with the peformance
obligations specified in the underlying contracts.

— Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and
service offerings were tested with the performance
obligations specified in the underlying contracts.

— Performed analytical - procedures  for
reasonableness of revenues disclosed by type and
service offerings.

We found the Company's revenue recognition to be
consistent with its accounting policy. We are
satisfied that the Company’s revenue has been
appropriately recognized and disclosure in the
relevant accounting period.
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2. Deferred Tax Assets

The company has carried deferred tax
assets of Rs. 1,186.84 Lakhs as at
March 31, 2021. The accounting
policies for deferred tax recognition are
set out in Note 2.4 (D) and the breakup
of deferred tax have been disclosed in
Note 10 to the financial statements.
Also refer note no. 32 of financial
statements. There is significant
judgement involved in accounting for
taxes as per income tax laws in India.
This gives rise to complexity and
uncertainty in respact of the calcutation
of income taxes, deferred tax positions.
Due to significance to the financial
statements as a whole, combined with
the judgement and estimation required
to determine their values, the
evaluation of deferred tax assets is
considered to be a kay audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:
We assessed the adequate implementation of the
policies and controls regarding deferred tax. We
evaluated the design and implementation of
controis in regpact of recognition and recoverability
of deferred tax assets. We examined the
procedures in place for the deferred tax
calculations for completeness and valuation and
audited the related tax computations and estimates
in the light of our knowledge of the tax
circumstances. We performed an assessment of
the major items impacting the Company's tax
expense, balances and exposures. In respect of
deferred tax assets, we assessed the
appropriateness of management's assumptions
and estimates, including the likelihood of
generating sufficient future taxable income to
support deferred tax assets on tax losses carried
forward and MAT credit entitlement, which shall be
available for utilization in future, We found that tax
provision and defemred tax assets are appropriately
recognized and disclosed in the financial
statement.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
informationand we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing s0, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materiatly misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary
actions, as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, finangial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind-AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This
responsibility aiso includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant fo the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whethar a material uncertainty exists related to avents
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abilty to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern. y
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the maiters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As.required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained ail the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other comprehensive income,
Statement of change in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accbunting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Sectioh 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internai financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B" to this report;

(g} In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has paid/provided for remuneration to its directors which is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Com_panies Act, 2013.
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

iii. There were no amounts due which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protaction Fund by the Company.
For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E

/b

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR) - Partner
Date: June 08, 2021 - ) Membership No. 088926

UDIN: 21088926 AAAAH(G3966
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on the other legal and regulatory
requirements (Re: Spice Money Limited)

(M a

(ii)

(iii)

(iv}

W)

(vi)

(vii) a.

{viii)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

The Company has a planned programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all its Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified annually. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to size of the
Company and nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, the Company performed
a physical verification of all of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year and ne material
discrepancies were noted on such verification.

As per records of the Company, the Company did net hold any immovable property as at March
31, 2021. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(i) {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventories at the year end and
confirmation obtained for inventories lying with third party. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification and confirmations obtained from third party.

The Company has not granted any loan to Company, Firm, Limited Liability Partnership or any
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, provisions of clause 3{iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given by the management and based on audit
procedure performed by us, there is no ican granted or guarantee or security provided under
section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no investment made, loan granted, guarantee
given or security provided under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.
Therefore, provisicns of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given by the management and based on audit
procedure performed by us, the Company has not accepted any deposit covered under sections
73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(v) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records prescribed under the section 148 (1) of the Act read with
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 was not applicable on the Company.
Therefore, provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues deducted/ accrued in the books, with the appropriate
authorities. There are no undisputed cutstanding statutory dues as at the yearend for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

. According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of income tax, sales

tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment cf dues to bank. The Company did not have any
borrowing from Government, financial institution and dues to debenture holders.
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(xi)

(xii}

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR) o
Date: June 08, 2021 Membership No. 088926

During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). The Company has not raised any term loan during the
year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by its officers and employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has paid/provided for remuneration to its directors which is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company.
Therefore, provision of clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177
and Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable indian Accounting
Standards.

The Company has made private placement of Class B equity shares during the year. We report
that the requirement of section 42 of the Act have bean complied with and the amount raised
have been used for the purpases for which funds were raised. The Company has not made any
preferential allotment of shares or fully &r partly convertible debentures during the year. -

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Coempany has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Parther

UDIN: 21088926AAAAHG3986
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ANNEXURE B

Report on the Internal FInancial controls under Clause (i} of Sub - section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Spice Money Limited (‘the
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over the financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and tompleteness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Finarncial Controls Over Financial Reperting (the "Guidance Note") and the
standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable tc as audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements of
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ahout the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internat financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a maierial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements. y
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company ; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitatlons of Intermal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements fo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financiai reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over the financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

, Bimal Kumar Sipani
Place: Noida {Delhi-NCR) Partner
Date: June 08, 2021 Membership No. 088926

UDIN: 21088926AAAAHG 3966
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Spice Muney Limited {Formerly known as Spice Digital Limited) :
Standalone Balance Sheet as al 31 March 2021 :
{Rs. im Lakhs wnloss otherwise stated)
As at Asat
Note 31 Morch 2021 31 March 2020
[
Assets ,
Non-current assets :
Property, plant and equipment 3 993.49 1,341.66
Capital worl-in-prograss 3 249.35 8591
Right of Use 4 0.5 12149
Cither intangible assets 5 729,09 89037
Intangible assets under development 5 81,48 273.58
Financial assets
(i) Investmenta [ 6,276.00 6,276.00
(ii) Loans T 83.53 4158
(iii) Other financizl assets 1 195,00 -
Deferred tax assets (Met) 10 1, 18584 1,251.81
Nen current tax assets (Net} 9 323.53 78432 .
Other non-current assets 11 8072 116.24 i
Totel non-gurrent a5se4s b0, 269 58 11,182.86 :
Current assets !
Inventories 12 46221 6245 !
Financial assets ’ i
(i) Inveatments 6 - - -
(i) Trade raceivables 13 628.14 13271
(iii) Cash and cash equivalenis 14 598932 2,72846
(iv}) Hank balances ather than{iii) abowve 15 943724 439,86
(v Loans 7T 742 1219 _
(vi) Other Binencial assets 8 2,675.31 £93.75 :
Current Tax Aazets {Met) o 535465 63328 .
Other eurrent assets 11 1,329.20 T30.20
Total current axsets 20,463 49 6,482.90 !
Tots! pesets 30,738,07 17,665,715 '
1
Equily and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 16 4,349.49 434515
Other equity 17 3,695.09 258512
Total equity 804458 653027
Liabilities
Nan-current liabilites
Finaneial liabilites
i} Lease liabiliry . 64,92
Frovisions 1% 355,73 228.190
Ohher non-current linbilitiss 20 134,81 -
Total non-current liabilities 450.54 293402
Current liabilitdey
Finaaclal {5abtlities
(1) Borrowing 2 1.854.18 99662
(i) Trade payables 7]
-Owtstanding dues of micto enterprises &
amall enterprises 19,49 -
- Onatstanding dues of other thean micro ’
enberprises & small entorprises 769.32 393.25
(iii) Lease liability 64,92 5891
(iv) Other financial liabilitics 18 968,16 291060
Provisions 19 13s2 44.73
Other current lighilites 20 16,365 .06 6035.35
Taotal current labilitles 22,202.95 10442.46
Total labilities 12,69349 10735.48
Tatal equity and liakilities 30,738.07 17665.75
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompamying notes Farm an inketnal part of the standateme financial

As per out report of even date sttached
For Singhi & Co

Chartered Accauntants

ICAI Firm Registration No, 302049

Foeg and on behalfof the Board of Directors

Kurmar Modi

1]
/Q’ B (Zhairman} (Independent Diractor} A
P DIN: 00025062 / DIN: 00012223

Bimpl Kumar Sipani

Partner ﬁ,z%'

Membership No.: 088926

Sunil Kumar Kapoor Megha Bamyal /)
: ’ (Director & CFQ) {Company Seecretary}

i {Mem. No, FR79430} (Mem MNo.AZ3383)

Place: Noida

Do Jeang. B r 202




Spiee Moncy Limlted (Formerly known as Spice Digital Limited)
Stancalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwize stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Naote 31 March 2421 31 Mazch 2020
Income
L. Revenue from operalicns 23 57,302.20 25,023.68
I, Other income 24 640.08 11770
111, Total income(I-+IE} 58,442,858 2520138
1V, Expenaes
Purchase of traded goods 25 37,590.51 13,524.72
Changes in inventories of traded goods 26 (317.26) {31.11)
Service & Commission Charges 27 12,561.55 710875
Empleyee benefit expense 18 3,131.03 1,772
Finance cost 19 238.84 131,06
Depraciation and amariisation expense 30 1,03328 82067
Other expenses 31 2.77131 1.776.34
Total expenses([¥) 57,010.7Q 25,189.76
¥. Profit/(Loss) before tax (II-1¥) 143218 91.62
Profit/{loss) before 1ax 143218 0162
VYL Tax expenses i
(1) Current tax

- For current ysar 23900 -

- For eariier year ’ 4004 165
(2) Deferred tax g2.86 (1o4.21)
Tncome tax expense (VI) 361,90 (102.56)
VIL Profitd(Loss) for the year (V-V} 1,0?028 i94.18
VIIL Other comprahenslve income 33

Re-measurement pains (tosses) on defined bencfit plans (64.28) (B4.62)
Incoma tax on ahove . 17.88 17.58

Total sther comprehemnive income( VIEE) . {46.40) (46.65)
IX. Totzl comprehensive lnconte for the year (VIT+VIE) {comprlsing
profitflosg) and other compraheasive income for the year) 1,023.88 147.53
X. Earnings per equlty share {nominal valee 6f share ks Ra 10)

Basie (In Ra.) 34 246 045
Diluted {In Rs.) 34 .46 045

Summary of significant accouating policies F
The accompanying notes form an mternal pact of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even dare atteched

For Singhi & Co Fdr and g behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accourntants

ICAI Firmn Registration Mo, J02049E:

Dills Kumar Mol
BATINEN )

pI: 00029062 /

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner

Membership No.: 083924 Sunil Kemar Kapoar
(Director & CFO)
{Mem. No. FOTS430)

Place: Noida

Date: JLamg. %; 202)

Suman Ghage Hazra
{Independent Director)
DIN; 0002223

Meghn BEansal

(Company Secretary)
{Mem, No..A25883 )



Spice Moaey Limited (Forwerly Spice Digital Lbsited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2021
(RE. in Lotz mnlkess otherwise stated)

Particnlars Forthe year ended $1st  For the year esded  March
March, 2021 1, 2020

Cosh florws Trnm operating activities

Frofitiloss) befare tax 1,432.18 9L.62
Adjustmpis bo reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Lassfigain} on prop Flant and equiy - 1.27
Degrociation and amorlisation axpens 1.033.28 120.67
Loss Allowance For doubriul debea 6334 9.5
Bad dabes written off LE 18.15
Trterest income {433.60) (128.24)
Bmployea Stock Option schems 75.44 441
Tntarest Expeitsa 23884 13609
Opersting profit before working capal changes 241843 99345
Warkdng copital adjustmenta:

Decreasa (increass) i trade reedvables (51275 1623
Decrensef (inercase) in imventorics (317,86 131D
Decrenaef{Increase) in kmns, other financial assels and othor assets (1,892.13) 431727
{Decrease)flncrease in rade payables, other Gabiliies & provisions 11,752.75 36,78
Cosh Aows Grom opgrations 1144346 545262
Income tases refund / {pakd) ¥ 27936 J48.19
Net cagh flow fromf (wsed ind aperndng activities (A} 13,722.82 " 5,800,581
Coshi flows from investimg activities

Purcliase of property, phant and egmipmenl (mcluding (316.53) (1,283.54}
capital work in propress. intangible essats end

ilancible asecis nnder development)

Muvement in Fixed Deposits [@,192.38) (1,399 55)
Interest reoeived 329.51 139.24
Net eash qusad In) Investing aetivities (B) [8,379.1H) [2,553.65)
Cashi flows from fimancing stivilies

Proceeds from issue of equity share capitalinet of share ismug 15.00 (096)
Payment of Leass Lighility {52913 {53.46)
Movewent it Mooy Eroen bolding company an (797.88) [LO73.17)
imph ion of scheme of # .
Finance cost (145.65) (136.9%
Net cash flow [rem/{used in) financing activites (C) {J86.34) {1,264.58)
NNet (deeressspinerense in cash & cash equivalents (AHBHC) 1,356.89 199238
Canh & cash equivalants at the begiming of Hic year 1,728.84 [253.54)
Cash & cash cquivalents at the end of the year 4,085,732 1,715.84
Conponrents of cash & cash equivalents: {Refer note ng.14)

Cash on land. 0.00 0.00
Clrsues i land - 18.37
Bakinces with bonks:

D garreni accoumis 5,0R0.32 271000
On bamk gverdmaft (1.903.50} [990.62)

4,185.72 1,884

Effecrive dpnl 1, 2007, the Company adnpled the ameudment fo bud A% 7, which requirs the entities 1o provids dischosurcs ihat enable wsew of Grancial
statemes t0 evaluats dinnges in Habilities arising frow financing activitics, including both changes arising from cagdh FBows and non-cash clangs, sumesting

inclugion of A regonciliztion betwom the opening and closing balances in the Balenec Sl for liabilities arnsing fom fi

The accampanying notes farm an internal par of the standalons Anancial statements.

A2 per anf report of even da i attachod

The adeption of h did not hevo any materiel impacst on the Statement of Cash Flows.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Fintt Registralion MNo. 302040F

Bimlfgujxfrsipani

Parner

Membership Mo.: 085926

Flace: Noida

pus Ty, o, 202,

—

{Chaighan)

Sunil Ko

Dilp r Modi

DIN-f0029062
AL

{Diircctor & CFO)
{Mem. No. FO70430)

Fen 2md out behalf of the Board of Directars

-

hities, t0 mect the discl

Ghofé Harra
{Independent Direclor)
DIM: 00012223

BIegha Baganl
{Company Sccretany)
{iviom. Mo AZ5EE3 )
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Spice Money Limited {Formerly kmown as Spice Digital Limbted)

For the yenr ended 31 Mprch 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs unlesy otherwise stated)

Statemene of Changes in Equity
A Equity share eapital (Refer note no. 16)

Issped, subscribed and fully paid shares
Issug of share capital

Ordinary Shares; Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Al 1 April 2019

Equity shares cancelled during the year

A1 31 March 2020

Equity shares issued during the year

At 31 March 2021

Issued, subseribed and partty ealled up shares

Clegs B Shaves: Eqpity shores of Rs. 19 each and Cofied up Bs. .50 each

At 1 Aprii 2019

Equity shates lsswed during the year
At 31 March 2020

Equity shares iseued during (he year
At 31 Maxch 2021

B (nher equity (Refer note na. 17)

Mo of shares

Amount

43,459,338
7,863

42459
0.79

43,451,478

4,343,158

43,451,478

4,345,158

" _No. of shares

Amonnt

869,030

435

BE9,0150

4.35

Reserve and zurplug

Items of ather
comprehengive
income

Partlculnrs

Securities

premium

Share buy back

FEIRIVE ACCDURE: Capital Reseve

Share Based Payment
Reerve

Retained earnings

Be-monsurement
gainy {lasses) on
defined benefit

plans

Taotal

Balrnce as at | April 2019

215318

311.87

Aia4

(F77.05)

099

2,393.35

Total comprebensive income for the year
Profit!(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income

(429.48)

19418
(46.63)

1218

(45.65)

Total comprehemsive income

id7.s3

147.53

Teansacthans with evwners in thelr capacity as ownees:
Eremiur paid on cancellation of shares

Addition during the year:

Transfer OC1 ko retained earningy

- . Im

441

099

@17

4441

Share based payment ko employees of the

Balance as &t 31 Mareh 2020

429.65)

378,25 .

(323.53)

2,585.12

Tolal comprehensive income for (he vear
Profit/{loas) far the year
Gther comprehensive incane

1,070.28
(46 40)

LOT0.2%
(46.40)

Total comprehensive income

102358

Transactions with ewsers in their capacity as owners:
123ua of equity share capital

Premium paid on cancellation of shares

Addition during the year:

Sharo baszd p to employees of the company

7544

10.65

Fo.44

RBalanee a3 at 31 March 2021

A,163.83

311.87 (412.65)

455.69

15538

H695.00

() Securdty p

BECOUNL Tep amaunt of p

2013,

d on izsue of shares to shareholders at a price more than ils face valse and can be utilized in accocdance with the previsions of the Companies Ast,

(ii} Share buy back reserve account reprosents amouni tranafireed from genarel reserya account on eancallation of equiry shares bought back pursusn to buy back scheme and ean be willzed in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(iii} Capital ceserve represent veserve created perswmes to scheme of Arrangement and can be ulilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Refer note no. 39,
(iv) Share bosed payment reserve relates to stock options grarted to eniployees under Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 and shall be transfirred to securities premivm accountfeeiaimed sarnings on

excercise’cancellation of aptions {refer Note no.40).

{v} Retoinod earnings are profils earned by the Compeny sfter 1ranafer to general ceserve and payment of dividend to shareholders.

The accompanying notes form an intarnal pan of the

As per qur report of even date attached
For Singhi & Co

Chartered Accountants .
ICAL Firm Repistration Ne. 302049E

s

Blmzl Kumar Sipani
Partnec
Membership No.: 083926

Place: Naida

P TiAre % 12 02N

For anon behalfof the Board of Directors of

Dilip ar Modi
(Chairnien)

DIN. 00025062 /

/!
Sunil Kum:l;fm;// '

[Direcior & CFO)
{Mem. No. F072430)

Snowan Ghoa ]
(Independent Director)
DIN: 00012223

Meghs Bensal
(Company Secretary)
(Mem. No.:A25883)



Spice Money Limited {(Formerly kngwn s Spice Digital Limited)
Notes to the dalane fi ial Es as al and for the year emded 31 Mareb 2021
(R4. in Lakhs unless otherwice stated)

1. Corporate information

Spica Money Limited(Focmerty known Spice Dighal Limited) (“the Company™ is a public Company domiciled in India and is incarperated under the provisions of the Compenies Act
applicable in India and having registered offics at 622, 6th Floar, DLF Tower, Jasala District cemire, New Delhi + 110025,

Spice Meney is one of India’s largest tech-anabled Hyper Loral Payments Network offering various services like Cash Depasit, Cash Withdrawel, Balanca Inquiry, 3ill Payments, Aadhaar
Enabled Services, Air Time Recherge, POS Services, Railway Ticketing Services, Cash Management Services stc. theough ils authorized agents.

The finaneial 81 are approved for issue by Board of Di of Ci y atthe "u.helrlans.lme,mzl.

2. Significant accounting policles

1.1 Statns of Complisnce:-

The financial have been prepared in lenee: with the Indizn Acconnting Standards (heremafter referred to gs the “Ind AS®) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursant o Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statemenis have been prepared under the historical cost convention on secrual basis except for the Rollowings @
i. Mon-current borrowings and lease linbilities are intbally measured at amortised cost.

ii. Current inveshmenis are measured ai fai value at each reporting date.

iii. Defined beaefit plans and other long-term employee benefits ara d st fuir velue ai esch reporting date.

These finantial hava been prepared on ecorual and going basia. The mg pelicies are applied consialently 10 all petods p J in.the financial

The finaneial are | d in Bs. Lakhs end all values are rounded upto bwo decimal places, except when otherwise indicated.

23F innal rnd P fon Currency

The fi ial are p d in [ndian Rupees, which is the funchional curreacy of the Company a_nd the curraney of the primary economic emvironnyent in which the Company
cpegales.

2.4 Summary of Signifieant Accownting Policies
A, Corrent versms non-current dassification

The Compeny presents assels and lisbilities in the balanee sheet based on currenlf non-current classification. An asset is troated 2 current when it is:

a Expected to be realised of intended ta be sald or d in narmal operating cycle;

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

©. Expecied to be realised within twalve months after ihe reporting peried; or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricied fam being exchanged or used to setle a liability for at least tnelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are elassified as non-current.

A liability is cument when:

& i is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b. 1tis held primerily for the purposs of irading;

< His due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4 There ia no unconditionael right vo defer the semlement of the lisbility for at least rovelve manths sfter the reporting period.

The Company elassifies all odher iabilities as non-ousreal.

Dleferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cyele is the time beteeen the eequisition of amets for p ing @ their realiaation in cesh and cash equivalents. The Company bes identified rwelve months &s it
operating cycle.

B. Fair valoe measurement
The Company measures findacial inslruments, sucl: a3, investmeals ¢te. at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an psset or prid to transfer a liability in an ordecly transaction batween market padticipants at the dete. The fair value
measurernend is based on (he p plion thal the tr ion 1o sell the asset or ransfer the Liability takes place gither:

i In the principal macksl for the sssst or Hability, o

ii. Inn the absence of B principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal ot tha moast edventageous macket must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measursd wsing the assumptions that market participants would usa when pricing the asset or liability, assming that macket perticipants aot in
their egonoaic best interest, '

The Company usa3 vafuation technigues thel are appropeiate in the cirewmsiances and for which suffcier dats are available 1o fair valug, maximising the use of relevant
cbaervable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

External vahuars ara nvolved for valuation of significant esaste, such as properlies and ung 3 fi 12l mssets, and significant liabilities.

All aszets and liahilities for which Tair value is 1 ar dieclosed in the fi ial stat is are categorised within the Fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significand to the fair value messurement as a whole:
Level 1 —Quated (unadjusted) market priees in active marksts Bor identical assets or lishilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value is dirently or indirectly abservable
Lewvel 3 — Valuation teshnigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair velue measuremeot is untbservable

Thia note summarises accounting palioy for fair vaiue. Other fair value related diselosures are given in the relevant notes.




Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digitat Limited)

Notes to the Inlone finamcial as at and Tor the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs ualess otherwise slated)

C. Revenae recagnition

Sale of goods

8. The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods when effective control of goods have beea pasced alangwith al] the following conditions are setisfied:

i1 The Company hes transtered to the buyer (he sigmfinanl visks and rewards of cwnership of the goods;

i1) The Company retains neither conlinuing invol i to the degree usually associated with cwnership nor efiective sonteol aver the goods sokd;

ifi) The amount of revenue can he maasured reliably,

i Tt iz probatle that The banah jated with the inn will flow ta the Company; end

) The eosts incurred or te be incurred in regpect of the transaction van be measurad raliably.

Bevenue represents neI value of gonds and services provided to cust after deducting for certain ncentives and retums including, but not limited to discounts, volums rebates, ete.
The Company hipping and handling activities a5 costs to fulfil the promise to transfer the related products and the customer payments for shipping and handling costs are

recorded as a component of sevenue,

Tncome from services

Revetue from fintech serviczs such as domeslic meney transfer (DMT), AEPS, BRPS, Tap up recharges ete. afe recognized when the services are actually rendered on real time basts,

Intgrest ingoue
Interest income is recognized on a time. propartion bagis 1aking into accounl the amennt ouistanding and the applicable effeotive inteceat rate. Inlereat income is includad under the head
“intgrest income™ in the stalement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the company's cight to Teceive dividend is established.

CGoods and service tax (35T an above, wh pplicaie, ia not received by the Company on its cwn . Rather, itia tax collected on value added to the commedity by the selier
an behalf of the go A ingly, it is excluded from e .

D, Taxes

Current Taxes

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profif for the year, Taxable profit differe from “profit before fax” as napwted in the statement of profit and loss becauss of yems of income or
expense thal are taxable or deductible in other years end items that are never taxable or deduwble The current tneome tax cherge is caleulated on the Basis of the tax laws enacied or
subatantively enrcted at the balance sheer date.

Deferved 1ax )
Deferred 1ax is provided using the liability methed an temparary diff k the tex bases of assets and liabilities and their camrying ts far f ial 1ing purpases ot the
reporting date. : .

Defercad tax liabilities nre resognised for all taxable temporary differences other than the deferred mx liability arises from th inilial recomnilion of an asset or liability in 2 ansackion,
aftects neither the accounting profit oor tasable profit or loss.

Deferred tex assets ane recognised for all deduetible tempocery differences, the carry forward of unused tax eredits and any uwsed tax losses. Dieferred tax azets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of poussd tax eredits and upused 1% osges ceon be
utilised. The camying value of deferred tax assets is reviewsd at the end of each reporting peciod and reduced to the extem fhat it is no longer probable thet suffisient axable profits will be
available to allow all or pan of the aszet to be recoversd,

Deferred tax assats and liabifities are mensured at the tax rates that are expectsd to apply in the year when the asset is reatised or the Sishility is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have boen { or sut ively d at the reponting date.

Defesred tix, celuting to items resognised outside the statement of profit or loss, is recogmised dicectly esther in other comprehensive income or in equity in correlation to B wodelying
fransaction.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax linbilities are offzet if a legally enforceable right exists 10 set off current tax assets againsl current tax liabilities and the deferred tax relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authoity. ’

Minirm Alternative Tax (MAT} is recognized as an asset only when and bo the extent there is convinging evidence that the-Company will pay normal income tax during the specifi ed
period. In the year in which the MAT credit bacomes eligible to ba recognized as on assat, the said asset is created by way of eredit to the statement of profit and loss end inglinded in
deferred tax assets,

The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the camrying amount of MAT eniitlement to the e:teni ibere is no looger convincing evidence to the effect thut
Compaty will pay normal income 1ax during the specified period.




Spice Money Limited (Furnm‘ly known ae Spice Digital Limited)

Notes to the dal a5 at and for the year ended 31 Muarch 2021

{Rs in Lakhs unless otherwise staled)

E. Property, plant and equipment,

On transition to [nd A8, the Company has elected o continue with the earrying valuz of all of fts propecty, plant and equipment recognised a6 at 1 Aprit 2015 measured as per the Indian
GAAP and use that earrying valug as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipmentL.

Capitet Work in Progress, Property, plant and equipment are stated at cast, less acourulaled depreviation and impairment, if any. Costs dicectly anribuiable to acquisition ars capitalized
unti] the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of assets in the causse of installation for supply of services or administcative purposes. Al the poinl when an eszet is operating &t menagement's
infended use, the cost of assets is ransferred t the appropriate category of property, plant end equipment,

Depreciation is caleulated on cost of PPE less their estimated residual velues over thair estimated usaful lives using straight line method and is recognised in Stmement of Profit and
loas. The estimated vsefitt lives of items of PPE for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

- Leaschold Improvements : 1-6 youcs (Lower of period of lease term and estimated useful |ife of assets)
- Data Processing Machines -
Servers 5 years
Camputers 3 years
= Furniture and Fittinga : T years
- Offies Equi t {excluding mabiis hendsets) : $ years
- Mobile Handsets ; 3 years
- Peyment Devices : 3 years

- Vehicles . § years .

The Company, based on &s made, depreciates certain items of propenty, plant and equig over estimabed usefuf lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in
Schedule IT to the Companies Ast, 2013. The management belioves thet these estimated useful lives ave realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets ars likcely
10 be used,

An iem of property, plant and ecui and any significanl part initially recognised ia derecognised upon diaposal or when no fuure ie benefits are expected froon ils use or

disposal. Any gain or foss arising on deracognilion of the asset (ealenleted as the difference between the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is meluded in the
ineome staterneal whan the saset is derecopnived,

The residual values, useful lives and metheds of depreeiation of property, plant and

Tuit are meviewed at each financial year end and adfusted prospectively, if appropriate.

F. Intangible assets
On trangition to Ind AS, the Cnm'pan}r hes e!.ccncd to cantinge with the carying value of all of its intangible assets recognized ao &i | April 2015 measured a2 per the Indian GAAP and 13e
that carrying velue as the ¢ | cast of the intangible assels.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at eost Foll v initial iKon, 1 ible assets are carried af cost less any avcunmlated amortisation and
acoumulated m)pnlrmmt loases.

The Camnyg 3 [ ible asset under development for a project in accordance with its aceounting pohcy Taitial eapllallsatmn ofcam i3 based an management's judgement thet
fechnological and economic ﬁ:amh]hty is confimmed, usually when a pradust develupment project has reached a defined mil 18 to en eslablighed proaject model.
In determiining the to be anpitalised B makes pti g the expecicd fublure cash generation of the project, dnsmunt rales to be applied and the expected
period of benefita,

Soft {In} Davelopad) produnt develoy O31S ATT XD iasi 1 unless technical and ial Foasibility of the praject is d i, future icel benefits

are probable, the company hes an intention and abitity to complete and use or sell the software and the cosis can be measured raliably. Tha casts whish can be eapitalized include matetial
wast, employee benefifs and other overbead caat that are direotly attnbutable to preparing the assetfor its imended use,

Inmngible assets are amortised over the ussfid economic life and asséssed for impairment whenever there is an indication 1hat the infengible asset may be impaired. The amortisatian
peeiod and the amortisation method for an intangible esset era reviewad at least at the end of each reporting periad, Changes in the expected vseful ife or the expected patier of
comsumplion of fiture esanomic henefns embodied in the esset are ounsndered to modify the amortisation period or method, a6 appropriate, and are ireated as changes in accouniing

estimates, The amortisation exg oni ible assets 15 recognized in the stab of profi and [oss.
Estimated
Inlangible assets nseful life
Compuer sofhwars (Office) o 3 Yemrs
Computer software (Site) 5 Years
In-house developed software ) $ Years
The residual vahues, useful lives and method of depreciation of i ible assels aro roviewed at each B ial year and adjusted prospeciively, i€ appropeiste.
Gnina or logses arising from d gnition of an intangible asset are d as the difference L the net disposal iz and the camying amaum of the aszat and are recagnised

in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogniced.




Sphee Money Limbted {Formerly kaewn as Spice Digital Limited)

Nates to 1he dal jal stat ns at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
{R=. in Lakhs unless otherwise statod)

G, Invesiment | subsidiaries, associntes and joint venture

Invesiment in subsidiaries, associates and joini venture ate mersmed initially at costs. Subseq to initial ition, i t in subsidiarie: iates and joint venlure are siated at
cost less impairmeat loss, if any.

Tnvestment in subsidiar_iu, associales and joint veniure are derecognised when they are sold or teansfrred. The difference between e net praceeds on sales and the canying amouns of
the asset is recoguised in statement of peofit and loss in the year of derccognition.

H. Borrowing costs .

Bnrlrw_ring cosls direcily atiibutable in the anquisition, consiruction or production of an asset (hat necesaatily takes a substential peciod of fime ta get ready For its intended use or sale ars
capifalised a8 part of the cest of the asset. All other borrawing costa are expansed in the period in which they oceur. Borrawing coats congist of imterest and other coats that sn entity inours
in gonnection with the horsowing of funds Borrowing cosis conist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in ton with the b ing of Fands.

I.Legses
The determimation of whether an arvamgenent contain A lease

A coniract is, or contaios, a lease ifihs conleact eonveys the right to coritre] the use of an identified asset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration,
Company as a lessor

Leasea for which the Company iz 2 lessor are classified as finance or operating leaszes. Whenever the terms of the leass transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as finance iease. All other leases are classified a3 operating leeses.

Renial income {fom operating lsanes ia gmized on & sirzight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, Initial ditect costs Lacurred in nsgoliating and acranging an operming leass are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lessa tarm. If an arrangemant ¢ontaing lesse snd non-lsaee componeats, the Company
appliss Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracis with 1 all the eansideration in the

Company a5 a lessee

The Caony hethes a is or ins a lease, at inception of the The Com, gnises a right-of-use meet and a comesponding leasz lizbility with respect
ta all lease arrangements in which it i5 the lessee, except for short-tarn lesses (dafinad as lassea with & Iem texm of 12 monihs or leag) and laasea of low value assets. For these leases, the
Company recognices (he lesse | a8 an af 1 on o straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more represemative of the time pattern in

which economic benefity from the lcasocl assels are cunsumed Contingent and variable rewials are recognized as expense in the periods in which they am incurred.

Lease Liability

The lease payments that ave not paid a1 the date, are di d using the interest cale implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determinsd, which is penecally the
case for leases in the Company, the lesses's inctemental borrowing rate is used, being the rate thet the individual lessee would have to pay ta Imrmwthe funds necesynry to obtain an psast
of simitar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar sconomic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease | is included in the of the lease bability oompnse

-lead lease pay (including in-aut fixed p y pryable during the lease term and under ibly certain ion ptions, 1885 Aty lease incentives;

»Watiable lease payments thn.tdr.peud on an index or rate, intilially mcasured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

*The amaount expecled to be payable by the [eseee under reaidual valve goarantees;

*The exercise price of purchase options, iFthe lesser is rersonably certain to exercise the options; and

*Payments of penaltics Jor kerminating the lease, if the Teasa term relleets the exercise of an oplion to lerminale the lesse.

‘Fha lease liability is p d as a sey line in the Bal Sheat.

The leeze liability iz subsequently d by ing the carrying amount to reflect jmerest on the Jease liability (using the effactive interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the leese peyments made. :

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjusiment o the related righl-of-use asset) whenever:

*The leass term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchese optien, in which caae Ihe leass Yability is remaasured by diacounting the revised lease
payments wming A revised discount rate,

+A lease contract is medified and the lease modification is oot accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease Lisbility is remeasured by discounling the revised leaze payments
paing a revised discount rate.

Rigit af Use (ROU) Aszets

The ROU sssets prize the inftial of the parding lease linbility, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any infbial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured At cost less acewmulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the pany incurs an obligation for costs to di le and a leased msset, restorc the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset 10 the condition required
by the terms and condibions of e lease, a provisien is recopnised and measured ynder lnd A% 37- Provisions, Contl Liabilitigs and Comdingent Assets. The costs are included in the
related right-of-use asset. -

ROU asaets are depraciatad over the shotter periad of the lease tarm and usefut life of the undarlying assst. If'the company iz bly certain to te a purchase option, the fght-of-

e asset is depreciated over the underlying assel’s useful life. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The ROU assets are presented 5 8 sepacate line in the Balance Sheet snd details of sssets are given ROU pote under “MNotes forming part of the Finenciel Statament™.

The Company applies Ind AR 36- Impail of Assets ta < i hethet a right-of-uge asset i3 impaired end aceounts & any identified impaicment loss as per its accounting policy
on ‘property, plant and equiy ’

As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 petmm alessze notto non-lease of wvéhen bifurcation of the is nat aveilnble beraeen the fwe components, md instead

bt

account for any lease and i p a5 a single amangement. The Company has used this prractlca] expedicat.
E icn and inatich eptions ere ineluded in many af the laases. [n detertnining the fease term the menagement considers all facts and circurnatences that create an economic
: to an ion option, or nok exercise a termination epton.

4. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the ]ower of cost and net realisable value,
Caats incurred in bringing each product 1o its present location mnd conditicn are seoounted for as foltowa:

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other coats, ner of GST lnpm Credit, inourred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on
FIFO Basis.
Met replisnble value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costa of'

and the est d eosts y to make the sale.

K. Impai of fi il assels

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the exten, the carrying amount of assets or cash germrating units exceed their recoverable amounl. Recoverable amount is higher of an assel’s aet

. selling price and its value in use. Value in use iz the present valie of eatimated fitore cash flows expeoled 10 arise from the continming use of am msset or cash genersting unit and from its

d.lsposal 2 the end of its useful lxﬁ: Imp t losses recapnized in prior years are reversed when thete is an indication that the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have
d Such Is are d a3 an ¥ in carrymg ts of assels (0 the exlent that it does not excerd the cerrying amounts that would have been determined (net of
or depreciation) had nﬂ imp nt loss been ] in previous years.




Spice Money Linited (Formerly known st Spice Digital Limited)
Nodes to the standalone fisamcial stat (5 as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Ra. im Lakhg unless otherwise stated)

L. Frovisions, Contimgent Ligkilities and Contingent Avsets

Based on the best esti provisions arg ized when thers is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of & past event and it is probable (*more likely them not") dhat it is

quired to setlle the abligation, and a reliable csiimate can be made of the amount of the obligation at repurting date. A contingent liability is & possible obligation that arises from a past
event. with the resolulion of the contingency dependent on wcertain future events, or e present obligation where na putflow is probabla. Major contingent ligbilities are disclosed in the
Emancial statements unleas the possibility of an outflow of economic resourses is remote,

Contingent assets ane ol ized in e financial but disclesed, where an inflow of econumic benefil is prabable.

M, Refirement and other long-term employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution seheme. The Company has po obligation, other than the contribution payable te the providen fund. The
Company recognizes conteibution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the telated service.

The Company operates 4 defined banefit plan ie. gransity plan. The liability 2z at (ho year end represeats the anvarial valuation af the gratuity liability of contioning employess as at thes
end of the year. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan i determined vsing tha prajeeted unit eredit method. Refec ot no. 35,

Rememurement comprising of actuarial grins and losses, are recognised immediately in the balance sheat with a comesponding debit oc etedit to retsined aamings through OCT in the
petiod in which they occur. B t are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digita) Limited)
MNotes to the standalone financial stat s s at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs ualess otherwise sizted)

Met interest is caloulated by applying the di rate to the net defined bengfil ability or asset. The Companry recognises e following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss:

= Service costs CoTprising euITent service coats, past-1ervice costs, Rains and losses on curtailments and nor- rouling sﬁ:tlemenls; and
- Het interest expense of income

The Compeny has long term employment benafit plans i.e. d lcave. A lated leave is bed ta eligible smployess at the time of retivement. The liability for accumulated
leave, which is a defined benefit scheme, is peovided based on ackuarial valuation ag al the Balance Shaat date, based an Projecied Unit Credit Method, craied out by an indepeadent
actuary.

M. Financial iastroments
A finaneial instument ix amy contract that gives Tise 1o 3 financial asset of one antity and a financial kability ot equity instrument of another entity.

Finaocial assets
Initiad recognition and measuremeant

All inancial assets are recognised iniially at Bor value plus, in the case of finmeial asasts not recarded at fair value through profit oc loss, transaction costs that ere stiributgble to the
acquisition of the flnancial asset.

Subsernent measnrement -
For purg of subsequent d, fi ial assels are classified in follewing categoriea:
i. Debt ingtruments at amortised cost

ii, Equiky i d at fair value ihrough other preheasive income (FYTDCE)

iii. Debt instruments and eipity instgments at Fair value theough profit ar koss (FYTPLY

Debi instruments a¢ amortised cost

A 'debi instrament’ is measured ai the amortised cost iFboth the following conditions are met:

8. The egset is held within a business model whose objective is to bald assets for collecting contraciual cash Rows, and

b Contraetual terms of the psset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that ere solely payments of principal and interest (SPPT) an the principal amount suistanding.

After inifial measurement, such finanoial asssts are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactivae imterest rate {EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by laking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or couts that ere an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is ineluded in finance income in the statement of prafit and

less., The e aisiog, from imp are gnised in the of prefit and loss.

Delt instrument at falv vaboe throwgh profit or loss.

Fair valug through profit or 1o5s is a residual calegory for debt 3 Any deht i which does not meet the cibena for categorizalion ds at amorlized cost of as fair value
through other comprebensive income ia clasaified as at faic value thraogh profit or lass.

In addilion, the Comg may ebept ke designate a debt insteument, which otherwise roesls amortized cost or fir value through other comprebensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit or loss. H , auch election is allowed only if doing so reduces or sfiminates 8 measuremsnt or recognition ( i (refemred lo ag ing muamateh’). The

Company bas not desighated any de instrument a5 a1 fair value through profitor loss,

Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured al fair value with all el phized in the § t of Profit & Loss.

Equity invesimenis

All equity | 15 in subsidiaries and joint vendiures are measured at cost.

Derecogaition

A financial asset {or, where apglicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily d gnised [ie 1 from the Company's balance sheet)
when!

i Thc. rights to receive cash flows fram the asset have expired, ar




Spice Money Limited {Fm‘merly koown as Spice Digital Limited)
Notes to 1he {al, a8 at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

ii. The Company has transferced its righta to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an ubhgarmn to pay the received cash flows m full without material deley to a third party
under a “prss-through’ armngement; and =ither:

a. The Company has {mnsferred substantially sl the risks and zewerds of the asset, or

b. The Company has neither transferred oor cefained substamially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controt of she emet

Impalrment of financlal assets _ : :

The ires loss all using the expected credit loss (ECL) moded for the financial assets which are not fuir valued 1hrough profit ot Joss. Loss allowaace for trade
receivables and all other financial assets with no sipnificant fi ing B is d 2t an enount equal to 12-month ECL, wmless there hs been a significant inorease in eradit
risk Fom initial recognition in which case those are measured for specific assets. The amount of expectad credit loeses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the ks allowance at the
reporiing date to the amount that is required to be recogniced s a provision for Losa ali in of prefit and loss

Financial Babiities

fnifial recognilion and measerement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as Gnanciat liabilities at fair value through profit or Joss, loans and bomowings, payables, as appropiale.
All fineneisl liabilities are recognised initially ot fair valug and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transection costs.

The Company's nancial liabilities inciude trade and olher payables and borrewings including bank averdraits.

Snbtequent mogeirentent
The of fi ia] liabililies depends on their clessification, a3 dascribed balew:

Findncial Kabififles at fitir vetae throngh profft or lass

Financial linbilitics at fair vahue through peobt or Toss include financial liabilities held for frading and Hrancial liabilities designated upon inilial recognition as at fir value through peafit
or loss. Financial liabilities are olaseified as held Tor trading if they are nourred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near tem.
Gaing or losses on liabilities held for trading arc recogpised in the statement of prefit and less,

Fi ial ligbilities desi 1 upon inifial recognition at faic valus through profit oc loss are designetad aa such at the initiel date of recogniticn, and t:»rll:,r if the griteria in Ind AS 109 are
satiafied. For lishilities designated as fair valus thmogh profit or loss, fair valee gains losses atiributatle to changes ie own credit risk are recognized in other comprehensive ineome,
Thesz gains/ kas are not sub; ily kansferred to of peofit and loss. However, the Company mxy tmnsfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, All ather changes i fair
velug of such ]mbtllty ATe rwogmsed in the statement of profit and loss. The Company hes not designeted any f | ligtility as at fair value trough profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, inferest-bearing b ing are k tly ) al amortisesd cost using the EIR melhod. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss
when the biakilities are d anized as well as through the E[R isation procass.

Amortised cost is calculated by teking into any di or p on acquisition and feea or costs thet are an integral pert of the EIR. The EIR emortisabion is included ss
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This categnwy panarally applies to bormowings.

Derecoguition

A Enancial liability is d gnisad when the obligatien under he liability is disehacged or cancelled or expires. When an exisiing fmencial liability s roplaced by another from the same
lender on substentally different terms, or the terrn! of an existing Iiablllt}f are substantinlly modified, such an exchange or modifioation is treated as e derecognition of the ariginal
Liabifity and the recognition of a new liability. The diffesence in the cesp carrng is psed in the stat of profit and loss.

Re:.fm;'.ﬁcaﬁm of financial asvets .

The Company determines classification of finavcial assets amd liabilities on initial recoprition. After initial recopnftion, ne reclessification is made for financial assets which are equity
instroments and financial liaolities. For ﬁnancial aszels which are debt instrumens, a reclassification is made only if there is a changs in the busi mosiel for ging those assete.
Changes to the busi model are exp | to be infreg The Company™s senior } ines change in the business model as a resull of externa! or infernal changes
which are significant to the Company’s operatiens. Such changes are ewdenl tu external parties. A chenge in the business madel occurs when the Company either beging or ceases to
perfarm an activity thal is significent to iz opersti Il-'lhe Comg finencial assets, it applies the rectassifieation prospectively from the ceclassfication dete which ia the
firsl day of the i diately next reporting pariod foliowing the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gaing, Josses (ncluding impairment
gains or Jozses) or interesl.

Offsatting af financiuf instraments

Fi ial asssls and fi ial fiabilities are offsct and the nel anrount is reported in the conselidated balance sheet if there 33 a cumently enforceeble kegal night to offset the recognised
amounts and thete is an inzention to settle on & net basis, to realizs the assels and seitls the liabilities simultanecusly.

Q. Cash and cash equivaleats
Cash and cash equivelent in the balance sheat comprise cash et barks and on hand and shart-tarm depoaits with an original metucity of thres months or lass, which ate subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consisl of cash and short-tern deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdeafis as they are
considered an integrel part of the Company”s cash

P. Share-based poyments

The pany It ip i F Jaling ta share-based peyment in statemant of préfic and loss usmg, ﬁur 'vaiue in aceordance with Ind A5 102, “Share-based Payment”
except the value of Stock Optioos to emplayeas of Iha baidiary penies and holding PADY A ] oz and dirgetly reduced from the retained earaings
tespectively,
'The Company initially measures the cnsl of sqmty—eertled transactions with employees using Black and Schales modei to determine the fair value of the liability inmurred, Estimatiog faic-
valoe for share-based p ination of the most eppropeiste velosion model, which ia dependent on the ferma and conditions of the gramt. Vesting
conditions, ofher than marlnet conditions 1.e. perfurmanoe based condition are not taken into acgount when estimating the fair valie. This esti algo requires deteamination of the pcst
appropriats inputs be the valustian model inoluding the exy 2 life of the shers option, volalility and dividend yield and making assumptions sbout them, The assumptions and models
used for estimating fatr value for share-based pay tm itans are disclosed in note 40,
Q. Busi Combination ather then C Contral _
Busi binations are ted for using the acquisition method. The iderati Fereed in a bosi binztion comprises the fair values of the assets iransfemred,
Tiakilities Lncurred to| the former owners of the sequired busi equity i issued by the company and fair valus of any assets or lizbility resulting from a centingent coosideration

9 Anguigit lated costs are exp d ag inpurred,
Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and i liabilities {in a busi bmation are d ak their fair values. However, certain assets

and linbilities i.€. deferred tax assets ar liabilities, assets or liabilities related to employee benefil g Ilabllmes ar cqulty instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements and assets or disposal groups that are classified as hetd fr sale, acquired or 1 a busi are d as per the applicable Ind AS.
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Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digilaf Limited)
Notes to the dnlone finoocizl stal, a9 at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rs. In Lakhs unless oihetwiso stated) N

Measuring Goodwill oe & gain From Bargain Purchase
The excess/{shart) of the sum of the considesation transfarred and the acquisition-dste fair value of any pmwous equiry interest in the acquired entity over the acuishion-date fair valve of

the net identifiah]e asset (n:t of identifiable axsets acquived and liabilities 1 ] jsed as goodwill(bargain purchase gain). Ary gsin on &
bargain purchace is recognised in cther o t ve income and lated m equity a5 Capital Rmerw. i there exists tlear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the
buziness combinetian as resulting in a bargain purchase, otherwise the gain is gnised directly in equity as Capital Reserve.

Busi Combination under C Control

Comman control b hi merms n t b ing entities or busi in whu:h all the combining entities or businesses are ullimately contralled by the
same party of parlies both before and after 1he business combination, and that conbo! is nol itory. B bigations imvohving entities or businesses under commeon control shatl

be accaunted for weing the pooling of interesis method. The assets end liabilities of the combining entities ara reflacied et theit carying amounts,

BRsecent A ling pr

On March 24, 2021, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs {(*MCA™) through a netifcet ded Schedule I of the Compani Act, 20]3 The amendmers revise Divisioa I, I and I of
Schedule IL ansd are applicable feom Agril 1, 2021, Key amendments rolating to DJ\usmn 11 which relale to ies whost fl are required to comply wilth Companies
¢lodian Accounting Standards) Bules 2015 are:

Bakance Sheet:

» Lezse liabilifies muuld bo separately disclosed under the head *finamciel liabilities', duly dislinguished as curren or non-gurment.

» Cortin additiona) disci inihe of cf in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to priar period erers and d bal at the beginning of the current
reporing perind, :

« Specified format for discl of shareholding of p

« Specified format for ageing schedule oftrade rceemablu, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and i ible asset imder devel

« If a company has not uscd funds for I‘]zu specl.fi: purpase for which it was borrowed from banke and fmncla!. imstitutions, {hen disclosure of etatls of where it has been used.

+ Bpenifio diact under “additi ¥ * zueh as complinnos with apprerved ok of arrangs compliance with number of layzrs of companies, title deeds of
imievable preperty not held in name of I loans and ad to promolers, direcors, key gerial p 1 (KMP) and eelated penties, datails of benemi property held ste,

Statement of profit and loss:
Additionad disclosures relating to Corpocate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual curcency specified vnder the head “sdditional information” in the nates
foeming pact of (he stendalone finaneial statements. :

*Ths dments are ive and the Company will evaluate the same to ive effect to them as required by law."
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Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digital Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

4. Right of Use Assets

Particulars Building .
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 April 2019 -
Additions 181.64
Transfer -
Balance as af 31 March 2020 181.64
Additions -
Discard/Transfer -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 181.64
Amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2019 -
Depreciation 60.55
Discard/Transfer -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 60.55
Depreciation 60.54
Discard/Transfer -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 121.09
Net carrying amount .
As at 31 March 2020 121.09
As at 31 March 2021 60.55
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Spice Money Limlted Formery known as Spice Digital Limiled)

Motes to the standaloae finrnelal strlements as at and for 1h
Rz in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

e & year eaded 31 March 2621

Finnneial assris
Mo, of Shores Mo of Shares
¢, Investments as 2t 31 March a3at 31 March Ax at 31 March 202¢ A5t 31 March 2020
2021 206240 :
Moncurrent  Currem Nos-turrent Current
bl In equity i
Umuoted investments
[orvestment in subsidiary carried at cost unbess otherwise
Hated
Fauman Exports Private Limited {face valve R5, 10} 240,000 20,000 6,27500 - 8,276.00 -
’ 6,276400 - &,276.00 -
Aggregate value of unquated nvestroes!, 627640 - 5,276.00 -
Aggrepate value ofunguoted investment $,27600 - 5,276.00 -
Aggregate amount of impairment in vahe of i - . - -
7. Loang
As ot 51 Morch 2021 As ol 31 March 2020
Non-curresl Cureen Nod-turrent Chrrrent
Louns to employess
Considered good-Secured . - - -
Cenzidared pood-Linseented 1248 450 T2 6.82
Loany which liave siguificant merease in ciedil rigk - - - -
Laans-credit impaired - - - -
Less: Loss alkawance - - - -
1288 450 7.22 582
Security Deposita
Conmidered pood-Secnred - - - .
Cousidered good-Lngreured 70,65 281 34,66 5.37
Security Dheposit which have significant merease in credit risk - - - -
Seeurty Deposit-credit impaired - - - -
Lzes; Lass allowance -
065 1% 34.66 537
Toisl 5353 T4i dL88 123.19
= Loans and reecivables are artete which generate a fived or variable intercat income: for the Company wh licablc and ropayable in cash,

The carrying value iy be affected by changes in the eredit citk of the camferparties.

8, Qther Fmancial azels

Receivable from velated party -considered good
Interest accred on uier-corporate jcans
Receivable apainst tickating
Receivable from related party -considered daubtiul
Intcrost acered on misr-corporate loans
mehle againsk ticketing
i from others idered gond
Ruceivable ngainst thokeling
Titerest acomed on fixed depesiis
Tnierost Tecedvable o Ticome tax refind
Unibilled Recaivable
Receivable againa collection fram agema
Drepasila with rermehing matority of nune than 12 months

Receivahle [rom bers S a i
Reccivable against collection front agents
Receivable against ticketing

Tes8 : Boos Allowansn far doubiful
Tuotal ’

9. Moy cuvrent tax msels (nel)

Advance icome-tax (uel of provision for mxation)

As at 31 Mareh 2021

Au ot 31 Macch 2020

Nog-varrgnl Curreat Non-currem Current
- - 16.87
woar - AT
. 120 - 3235
- 12165 - 17.26
- 3214 - -
- 36,76 - 301
- 1,845.64 - 366 22
195.00 - -
- 12.3% - 12.85
195.00 05178 - 706,60
. {12.39) - (1239
19511 E”.Sl - 593. 75

Asat 3 March 202

As o 31 March 2020

Woo-curresl Current Non-gurrest Currest
32153 335.63 8432 63328
323.53 535.6_3 784:2. 53326
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11, Qther assets

s at 31 Murch 2021 As9151 barch 2030 : :

MNon-currest Curreot  Woo-carrent Current
Receivable from related party -considered good
Advancgs 0 related partics - - - 41.20
Reccivable from related party -considered doukdinl
Advances to related partics . - - - -
Receivable from ofliers -cousidersd gand '
Capital Advances 100 - 11276 -
Prepeid rent 007 1.56 163 1.56
Prepaid expenses 068 23362 L33 7243
Input Tax Credit Receivables - 4656 - 22073
QST paid mader Protest - 1026 - 1626
Addvances to agents - - - -
Advancas (0 servies providers - 630,16 - 18390
Othet Recuivabloe - 16,04 - -
Receivable Bram athers - eosnidered donbtful
Advanees to serviee providers - 49,9 - - .
HLT2 1,379.1¢ 11624 730.20 -
Less : Loss Allowsace for doubtfal ) - (4996} . -
Tatal ST 1,329.20 116,24 T30.20
" 12, Inveatories
Asat 3] March  Asab 31 March
. . 021 20y
Traded goods (at owet of cost and et cealisable valug) 462.21 62,43
Total e e

The st of imenlonies moognised a5 an dxpens Ln::l;mi::s Ra 32 Lakha {2020 - Ra. 15 Laklis} in respect of writc-donm of imvenlory o net realisable valne, ’ .

13. Teade receivatles

Asat3 March A5t 3 March

2021 203

Reccivables from related partics {refor note 37) : . ) -
Receivables foom olhers : 526 14 182.71
628.14 182.71

Bacored, conzidored good - -
I.lmew:ed mnadaredgood : 62814 182.N

L i gk i i . -

Uneeenred, Credit Dnpaired® . ) 2.20 -
] 630354 1.7

Lots Allowancs .20 -
Total 626.04 18271

- No trade tre due from celated partics either severally of joinlly with any other person, Nor any trada or ather raceivable ave due from fitins or privals companies
respectively in which any director is 3 partocr, a diseetor or a menber,
- Trade reccivabiks are non-interest bearing and are generally on terma of 3 to 90 daye and payments are rectived in cash.

14, Cush and cash equivalents
Asat} March  Agat 3 March

2021 2020

Balance with banks:

CIn cverent aeeguda # 3.989.32 2,1009
Eleposit with original maturity nf l24s than three momhs - -
Cheques/drafts on hand - 1837
Cash ca hand #7 000 L11]
Total : 598003 2,728.46
- Shori-rerm deposits are mads for varying periods of betweon ofe day and thres mezths, depending on the immediate cash requi of the Comprrry, and ear nterest

at the repective short-tarm deposit rates.
# After net of Be. Mil (31 March 2020 Ra. 14.04 Lakha ) relating to Digispice Technokogics Limited {Formedy ke a3 Spiee Mohility Limited “Holding Company").
## Bl Bgure is Bz, 360 (Previous yrar-Ry, 3603

15, Other bank balances

Az nt31 Merch  As at 31 March

2021 2030
Dieposits with remaining m:thy of l:si han. 12 tnontiist 4,364,859 -
Deposit held ne sacurity against b ngs/bank p ining meatority of leas than 12 mouths) #4 507225 1.430.36
Total 243724 1430.36

# Adter net off of R, Wil (31 Mrrch 2020; Bs, 3.41 Lakhs) relating o Digispics Technologies Limited (Fomerly known as Spice Mohilily Limitcd “Holding Company”).

P After net off of Rs. Nil {31 March 2020: Re. 303,94 lakhs) relating to Digiapiee Technologies Limited {Fommery kuown as Spice Mobility Limited Holding
Company™).
- Inelurdes Deposits of R, 36.92 lakhs (31 Wiacch 2020: 43,18 lakhs) plodged against issue of bark guarantees, depogits of Re. 102,89 (31 March 2030: Ra. L0000 Takhs)

lien marked against pro paid instoucent business, deposits of s, 4,907.94 lakhs (3 March 2020: Rs. 1371 68 Takhs) lien merked against overdraft focilites taken from
banks againe fived deposits and deposits of Ra. 25 lakhs (31 March 2020; Ra. 25 telths) lien mendred against iseus of comporate eredit card.




16. Equity Share capital

As at 31 Moreh  As 81 31 Mareh

021 2

Amthorised share capital
100,000,000 (100,000,000 Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 cach 1,000.00 110,000,000
Tatal 1000000 10,000,041
Issued share capital
Ordimary Shares: 43,451475 {as at March 31, 2020: 43,451,475) Equity shares of Ra. 16 sach fully called up $,245.15 4. 34515
Class B Shares: 3,66,030 (a5 at Marzh 31, 2020: Mit) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each panly ealled up 25,00 -
Total 443205 4,345,138
Subscribed and fully paid shave eapital . .
Ordinary Sharea: 43,451,475 (as at March 31, 2020; 43,451 475) Equity shares of Rs. 10 gach 434515 434513

4,451 4,045,148
SBubycrideed but not fully paid share capital
Class B Shares: §:66,030 {na at Marelt 31, 2020: Nil) Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, s 0.50 called up cach 4.35 -

435 -

A Reconcilintion of the ﬁumher of shares and pmpent omistandlng ot dke beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Ordlnney Shnves- Issued, subseribed ond fully pokd wp
. Aant31 March Afat 3L Mareh Acae3 Barch  As ot 3 March

021 il 020 foell}
No. of Share  Bs. in lakhs No. of Shave Ry, in lakhs
Equily slarce outstanding at the beginming of the year 43,451 415 4,3145,1% 43 439338 434503
Equity shares issued during the year ) - - - -
Equity sharcs cancclled during the yeac# - - . 7863 .79
Bruity shares autstanding at the end of the year 43451 418 445,18 43,451,478 §45.15

Clats B Shara- Issurd shares

As i3] Dlarch As ot 31 Marth  As s 31 March  As ot 3 barch
2021 il 200 plir
No.of Share Rz Inloiie Mo, of Shave Rs. in Inkhs

Equity shares ing nt the hegining of the vear - - - -
Enuity shares jssncd during the war 269,030 $6.90 - S
Equity shares autylanding at the cnd of the year - B63,030 8690 - -

Clags B Skaves- Subazvibed but not full id shares (partly called up}

Ag at 31 Mach Asat 31 March  As a0 31 Morch  Asat 35 arch
20z 2020 amn e
Mo, of Share  Ra in Inkhs No. of §hare Re. In [al:hs

Equity sharex tutstooding at the boghming of the year - - X
Exquity shares issucd duzing the year REG030 4.3 - -

Equity dianes outsianding a1 the end of the 1ear smlmin 4.3;5 - -

B. Rights, preferentes and restrictions attached to equity shnres
- The Company bag two classes of equity shares ae below:

Ordlnory shares: These shares have a par valve of Re. 10 per share, All equity sharcs mak sqnally with regard to dividends md share (0 (bt conpany's residsd assvis on
winding up. The cquity Sharcs are colilled to reecive dividkwd a5 declarsd from fime to time, The veting righes of an cqmity sharhokder cn 8 pall (mou s show of latds] are
i propoion to ameunt paid o soquity sikee, Yotiag riglhts cannct be rxercised in respeet of sheres et which sy eall or ether mumes presently pavalic has not beer pnid.

{1ass B shgres: Eoch Closs B Shire shall have a par value of Bs, 10 and i= issusd at a premium of Re. 24.52, Theee tauity diarcs of the Company shall cqmy differentinl
voting rights vis a vis Ovclinary Sharcs. aceordingty, svery 5 Class B Shares will have one vote in proportion # smeunt pald on elass B equity share. Any fraction i b
disrcaarded for Hic purposc of such compirtation of voting power, With the exeeption of vating rights which ara differsnt bevween Class B shares and ordinary ahares, for
all nther matters thie Class B shares shall rank par passw to the ordinary shares. Failore ro pay sty amosnt callsd up oa sharee may lead to its forfeiire. Pollowings ar: (e
future eall date in respect of balance instellments and the amount payable on each Call is within 30 days of Call Dats. .

Cail Coll Date Yeage of Subsceiptlon Peke  Amount (Re)  Nomeinai Value  Shave premiom
On spplization - 5% 1726 D50 1.236
First Call 13-Bec-21 % 1.726 0.50 1226
Eocond Call 13-Dec-22 . 1% 3.452 1.4 1,452
“Fhird and final Call 13-Dec-23 B0% 21616 §.00 19,616

B 3182 10,00 2,520

C. Equity shares keld by baolding Conmpany
Dut of cuily sharee issucd by the Company, wpuity sharce held by ifs holding Compamy are as Belaw:

Asat 3 Maveh  Asat 31 March
Partiesdars 103 2026

43051475 (31 March 2020 4,34,51,475) equity shaves : d.345.15 4,345.15

Total 4,145,158 4345.1%
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I Details of shareholders hakding more (ban 5% ghares in the Compamy

Mame of the shorelolder B Ag al 31 Mareh 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Nu, of Shures  %a of Hold No. of Shares % of Haldin,
DiGispice Techinokgies Liited (Holding Company) 43 451475 0B .04 43451475 100.00
{Formerky kauywn as Spice Mobility Limited) 43451478 0804 43,451,474 100,00

E. Mo shavea have heen alioted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares ducing the perlod of five years immediazly preceding the bakunce sheet dats.

# During the previnus year the Company had cancstlod Shares held by ether then Spics Mobitiy Limited {now knovan 2a DiGispise Technotogies Limited) g5 provided in
the Schorme of Arrangement on sohrme bocame eBective an Func 1, 2019 frefer agte no, 19},

17. Other eqnity
Az at 3] Morch  As mt 31 March
2031 20
Becurities premimn 3,163,83 3,153,(8
Sharc huy back resarve acooune ’ 3ik? 311.87
Capitnl Reserve (424.63) (429 65)
Share based paymait Resere 433,50 378,25
Retained ¢amingy 165358 [RI853)
Tatal ES.DF 2‘585. 12
Asal 31 March  Asal 31 March
2061 030
Secorities premium
Opening balanee - 315318 3,153.18
Add : Premuin on Class B equity sliares isgied 10.63 -
Clinivig balance : 316363 EREESE)
Shace buy back reserve scconnt
Opening bakuce 51187 31T
Addilrons during the year - -
Clesing balarca 31597 31187
Capital Reserve
Opening balnce (429,65} (429,423
Less: Premium paid an cancellation of sharcs (cefer note no. 16) - .17
Cleaing balance - (429.55) (425.65)
Share based paymenit Reserve
Opening balance 37825 334
Additions during e year 7594 441
Clesing balance : 453.69 1825
Retained earnings
Opewing balauge {874 44) {UPEA6)
Profit! {lpss} far the year (including other compeehiensivo incoms) [EVERE] 147,51
Clesing balance 195,35 (828.53)
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18. Cher fuancisl lisbildies

As at 3 Morch 200 As m 31 March 2020

. Nan-curreat Current Non-corrent Current
Payable o rolated parties {refer noig no, 37) * W47 B 7.198.46
Payable to others .
Loan Liability- Leges - - - -
Tntesast Accrucd but not dne - 4546 - . 1.67
Briphayee related payable Gincludes salary payable and variahle GOmpoIsation) - 40,56 - Coooangr
Capital creditors . .40 - -
Payable om settlernet of scrvice b actions - 0327 - -
Total ) N 966.16 . o060

* 31 March 2021: Represcnts Rs. (7,47 Lakhs payable related to current acconnt balamoe and Rs 183 lakhs intercat on income tax nofnd rolased to AY 2013-19 of
Digispice Technologies Limited {Formery known a Spic Molglity Limired “Holding Coppany").

31 March 2020: Reprasems moncy payable o Digispics Technologics Limited (Fu 1y Spice Mohiiity Limied) Holdig Compauy) en impkensatation of Schong of
Armmngement (refr nate #0.3%). The same lmbeen duelo!ed a3 loam from Holding Cnmpany Refer ngte rg, 21,

12, Provissans
As i 31 March il Ag at 31 March 2001
Non-corvent Current Noa-current Curreni
Provision for entployees beuefits
Grotalty (Refer Noto 350~ 21131 7978 L3018 .89
Compengated abrences : . 13342 1358 1M 13.58
Frovigion for G3T wnder dispute - 10.3% - 1526
Tetal . .‘ES.?S ml 13_8_10 44.73
3, Ohtbier ligbilitles
As i M Mareh 202t A5 ot 31 March X
. Mon-current Carrent Mon-current Curwent
Dieposits from cmstamens ’ .21 35397 N N ~
Defered reveine . . - - . 1.7%
Aduances Eom ctistomers . : 3290 - 3139
Prepaid haknee of agenls (apainst future remittances) X - 1552887 - 378143
Statutory duss payable . - 14032 - 16558
Otlicrs - - - 3466
134.51 16,6506 - 0,(135.35
- 21. Borrowings .
Maturity Asg ar 31 Mareh 2021 A5 at 31 March 2020
Non-corrent Carrent Noa-gursant Correnl
Secured
Owverdraft Eacilities againgt FI¥ from banks # On demand - L4136 - 309,62
Unsecured
Loan from Holding Company * ’ - 1,980.5¢ - -
. - 3484.18 - 395 G2

¥ In the curreat yeor, overdraf) faciliics fram bauk arc sccured by pledge of Bxed depasit with banks. n previons year, gverdrafl facilitics From baik wers scaured v
pledge of fixed deposit with banks and by ive sharpe by way of hypathecation on entirs moeivable From NPCT rowed throuph RBL Bank, The eility earried intorest
at 2% as ot 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: 8.75% ).

* The Company has Bliara Bill Fayment authorization from Beserve Bank of Todia (REI} nd in mapesl of the same, the Company noeds bo maiatain a wet 1\011!.\ of Rs
16,000 lakhs as per RBI nonme. Accordngly, o 30 March 2021, the Board of dircctors of the Compauy considered and approved issuc af 3.3
Compulsory C itle Prefe shares (CCCPS) st par having face vahme of Bs 10 per share agsregating t1 Rs 2,300 fukhs on fight issue asiz 10 tﬂstmg aha
inthe pmpm‘tlun of their existing deareholding. The teaue & conditions of thess shares arc ag follows

- Contwentible it equity shares within 3 years or at the fime of fnd raise exercise {from extental paries] whichever is catlics.
- Conversion will ba a1 the valiation m the event of converson.

- These sharss will be non-panlcipating in i,

- The Cumulative C lsory € ibls Prefe hares bave 3% dividend,

Fhe Beard of Divectors of DiGispicc Tochnelogies Limited (Hobding Comprany) 31 March 2021 considersd and approved tho infusion of fiusds £ an arooum 1ot
eceeding Ra 3,300 lakds by way of investment i 596 COCPS of Rs L cach offored by the Company.

Theabove loan regayrnent will beéqjuahed ngainst the monegy receivable from the Holding Connpany in die next Anancia] year in reapect of the tssue of CCCPS,

21.Trade paynblea
. Az ot 38 March Az 0t 3F March
2021 poi]

Trade payables to relaed partes {rafer now 37) 4050 -
Trade payables {mfer note 45 for dmails of doe b micro stk smail soterprises) '

-Ohtstanding dues of Micry Entemicises & Small Enferpriscs ’ 49.49 -

= Qtstanding ducs of Other than Micro Enterpriscs & Small Enterprizcs R . 902 3uE.2%
Nzt Balaroe . A19.01 393,25

- Dua tp micro, smal and medium cerprises have besn determined to the extent such partios hava bean identified by the Campany an the basis of inforuation eolleciad
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~ Far the period For the year

13, Revenue frows vperafion: © engded 31 March ended 31 March
" 2021 200
Sale af Adriime nd Traded Goods -
Airima 6, 15538 13,667 64
Payment deviess and others 168537 {4.27)
. ' 37,.B40.75 13.663.37
Salexfrendering of services : 10,594.61 11,305 52
Written back of balances . ’ 6743 4.8
19,962.05 1136031
Total ) P
Ag per the terma ofthe. with it b all g bligations are to b pleted at point of time as the Compmly has a right to eeeive consideration
from its eugtomen Bor all ol peri bligati A dingly, the Company has availed the prastical 1 ilabls prder I h 121 of Ind AS 115
and dispensed with the additional disclosures with respect t perft bligations that ined isfied [or parially ‘ atthe balanes shest deve, Furiber,
since the torms of e contracts directly ideutify the transaction price for each of the completed perft bligatian, in Bl mateyial respects, there are no clements of

transaction pricc which have not bozn included in the revenus rewgmaed i the Finaneial Stetement. Alsa, there is no dfference betveen the contract price and the revenue
Fromu comtract with customers.

24, Oiher imgme
Tiiterest reteived an fnancial and sod finameial assets -Carried ¢ amortised cost

Blank deposits . . 43160 10185
. [ler corporate kads - o]
[neenne tax rwhimd saRs -
Qthers 168 4.73
Remal Incoms | 4eE3 4073
Net gain on sale of currem ndstments in rustual fand unita - -
Liabilities no Touger requived, writen back . 9311 3.00
S40.08 L7LTG
25, Purchase of traded poods
Purchase of Airtimes and Teaded Goods 37.591).51 13,524.78
Total 3758051 13.524.78
26, Chacge I fwventories of traded goods .
Inwentary at the beginming of the year G248 - 3134
Add Inventory transferred from Capital work in progregs : 2150
Lcss: inventory at the end of the year ) 4221 6245
Total changy in inventorics of traded gonds - ___[317.86) {3L.10}
27, Service & Commission Charges
Domestics Monay Tranefer Charges 1,170.35 610
Corrmission and other charges 11,390.82 £339.75
GSP Services Charges - : 018 1.80
12,551.55 7,108.75
18, Employes benefils expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus . 1,803 8% ,787.71
Conribution to provident and other finds 160,06 121.34
Gratuity sxpensa (Refee Motz 35) ' 434 36,07
Share hased paytent cxpenses (Refer Note 40] . 75 44 4441
Sinff welben: expenses 3431 62,54
3,131.03 2,052.08
Less; Capitatised a6 intangible 3stets . TP
313103 1,772.78
29. Fimance costs
Trterest on:

Borrowings 229,33 122.05
Lease Lizhility 249 W94
Samitory dues 0.04 007
Totnl 23858 133.06

i
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3. Depreciotion and mmeortiaation expense

Drepreciation on plant and

Diepreciation on Right of Tsc Aiicix {Mota d)
Amortisation on intangible asacts (Now 5)

31, Other expeutes

Fent

Rate and laxcs

Insurance

Repair

- Computers and cthers

- Buildings

Eleculedry and wrater

Advertising and sakes pramotiou
Brokerage: and discounts
Travelling and conveyance
Communieation osts

Legal amd professions! fees
Dircctars' sitting fees

Payment to auditor (Refer detaile belov)
Vehiele runming and maitienance
Altowanee for deutaful dabis
Loss oo 3ale of fixed assets (net)
Doastion -
Bad debtz/advances weitten aff
Carporate sacial fespesibility ceprodibaes
Miseellmemy cxpenscs

Lo E alalized as 3 ible pssels

A. Payment to suddtor (exciuding taves)
As muditor: ¥

Sterumnry Audit fe |

Tax audit fes

Lirnited review
In gther capacity:-

(her services (certificaticn focs and special audit [

Reimbursemeat of sxpensas

]

For the peciod _

ended
31 March 2021

For dbe yenr
enrled X
Al Mareh 2020

35209
6055
100.64

S02.07
0,535
25780

1.03518

EH0.6T

e e ———

W757 150,17
135 1252
931 10.09

15306 LN P

1421 3504

33325 165.7%

179.87 27958

220,55 13038

1,15325 44083
1125 6.75
1863 1212

214,18 196.14

1334 958

- 127

. 0.04

£.85 1215
4800 -

187.54 73,95

2,77331 1,795.48

- 18.61
2,773.31 177684
§.00 700
200 200
7.50 S0
110 3.10
.03 106
15.63 19,19




32, [ncome tax
The major mmpmmntsofmometa‘i enpenae for ihe yeers crded 31 March 202 aned 31 March 2020 aca.

. ) For the period For the year
A, Amount recognised i prafit and loss: ) . ended 31 Merch  ended 31 March

it

3 200 014

] Current [ncome Tas:

1 Currant 1 . 23400 -

1 Adfnstment in nespoct ufmcnmc a of provious yoar - 40 fd 163

] Deferred tax: :

i Relating to arighntion and roversal of v diffk §2.36 {104.21)

F Encome 1ax expense reporied in the statement of profie or Joss F61.90 (102.55)

3
Deferred tax impact an coraponent of ouer con'mmsm income {OCIJ ,
Re-measurinent of defimed benefit uh]igmlm . : (17.88) {17983
Total ineome tas beneflt recogalsed in other enm; v income . {17.83) {L7.98}

: . : For the peelod  For the year
R, Recomeilintion of effective tax rate ended 31 March  ended 31 March
2031 2030

Profit(loss) for the year 1432.18 9162
Income 1ax neing e demestic thx rate (CY: 25.12%, PY: 2T.82%) 417,05 2549
Rt ehange impaot on defeered by [15.38) -

L Non deductible expenses ’ 7.00 028
Adjustment o mapset of current incoane fax of earlier years 40,04 L.63
MAT Crodit taken ducing the yar wolated o carber year f40.041 (1851
Unrecongised Tax losscs i carlier vear now reccgnised ’ ’ - .13y
Effct of urecougised Tax Ioeses in earlir year set off'witk current year income . . - (27.3%
Unrecongized Tax losses - -

; Tncome tax effect on acguisition adjustment on intre group transfer of employess [18.00) -

: Others (25.78) {iL.66)

: : 361.90 {10257 :
33. Comy of other hemsive ipcome (QCT) . .

: Re-measuremen gains {losses) on defined beoofit plans' : [64.28) (64.63)

[ income tax impact 1/88 ET.98

| : : sy s

| 3, Earning per share {EPS)
Basic EPS amaumns zna cabeulated by dividing the profit{loss) for the year attributable to cquity holders of the Company by b weighicd mverage menbar of muity shares

outazanding during the yezr.

Diluted EPS amouts ore eafeclated by dividing the praftAloss) attritmtable to cquity halders (afier adjusting impacs on: prafit of dilutive potential cquity sharss) by e
aggrogme of weighted average numbar m’eqmtv ghares outstanding during the sear and the weigied sverage nmber of equiny siarez that fo0id be isansd on seqversing s
of all the dibyive poeatial squity shares into cipuity sharca.

The following reflects the 1neotie aod share data usad in the basie and dilurcd EPS computationg:

Profitf(Loss) atirituzabl m eqrity holders of the Compaay; 103 zE 1% 1
: Prafit artributable to cquity holders for tasic camimas 1,070,228 154,18
1 .
: . Weighted average mpnber of cquity sharce outstanding at the beginning of kg year 41430477 A3A5LATE
: Clags B- 8,690,930 sharcs issued om 13 Dec 2020, Called Ps 1.724 of share vabee Bs 34,52 (inclusung prewsium Bz 24521 333 B
Weighted sverape aumber of equity shares omistanding at the end of the year for bisic £83 43,457,348 43,481,479
. Poterinl ERCPa vestod 43 4t 3% Marck 2871 izaucd for no consideration 32855 -
Weighted everage numlter of equity shares sutstending et the end of the year for dilutive TS 43,490,004 A3 483,478
Bosic sarnings per shave of Bs. 10 each din Rs.) . Z46 .45

Diluted carmiugy per share of Ra. 10 each { in Rs.) 244 045
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_ Splee Momey Limited (Forwaerly Spice Digital Lineted)
Pater tn. the +andolone financlal stsemonts for the year enided 31 March 2021
Rs. im [01tha unless athierwiae stvbed

10, Deberred inx pascta

Recognited delzrred 1ax aysets and liabikfica
. Dielemerd tax asaes and liabilities we atiribulsbie 0 G following:

Dalerrad tax nasenn Drafarred iax (Hebliles) Net deferred iax assedd]labdifies)
31-Mar-21 31Mar30 31-Mar-2L J0-Max-20 3L-Mar-11 31-Mlawe- 20
Frapeety, pland il ¢quipments, Right of Use - - 89,627 (154, 14) (&6 (15 14y
Awsels arul inlangible assots: Impaey of dHifermee
betwoen: 1% degreciation and depraciavion’
umadizalion recognised in hacka
LEOE provision k3212 10533 132,12 105,23
Brovisimusemployes benefils 124,88 4677 - - 134.85 86.77
Provisiema fir Laas Allowanees 1844 G - - 18.44 .24
Luug: Liabilie 18.9¢ A5 - - 18.50 3345
Unalxorbad depreciation - 8933 - - 933
Idhier itwims 331 3.3} 0.4 042 286 261
Deferved mx maclaf {linbditics) 761 22435 (005 [154.56) 13155 17069
MAT credid rmosinpbles 9.2 108111 - 949.2% 108111
Nt deforsnd tnx napety’ [Ilamii:g 1,356.22 . L 30636 L7008 (]5-1.5_@ l,liﬁ__ﬂi 1,131.80
Reengnited defoares] tax arcate ani Hab Dikecteaminued)
B, Moveiment in temperary differences
Halsnce 2l ClargeddCredlied) Rocoguieed In Ealsocens st Charged{Credited)  Becapnizedin  Balanes as at
In prafitorines ol in profi orlnse oc]
doring daring
31 March 2014 1015-1% 2019-30 31 March 2020 20m-21 003, 31 dlarch 1021
Iruperty, plagi aned equipments, Fight of The . [I06E4H 47.30 - (154,141 {24.57) - {68462
Asseis ond intangible asacts: npact af dilference.
bevons La¥ Jepressalion and deproctatont
amortisalv recognised in books
Tweatinent of faiw vabue thrcugh prafit er logs - - - - - -
TS0 pronision 9287 (T236) 105.23 (2629 . 13112
Trmnizpens-umgiloyee bonefits .90 an 1798 8677 o010 (17.98) 134,85
Prowigicns fir Losa Aflosvanees .01 L7 - 5.2 {1220} - 18.44
[.eu s Liahikicy - {34.45) - 14.45 1588 Lt L8 5
Huahzoched depracintion - (ED.23) - anmn HEKE] - -
Ui 1Lems. (14.78) (1760 - 281 155 18
MAT ecedi rreivables 107945 {165} 4L 13131 M9
1,120.43 (18421} N7.85 125L8D B4 (IT.zI;)_ 1,186 84
-~
Nt dofirmnl jan acepip
Bisciased In the Dalanoe sheet az followa: Az a1 318 Mareh As at 3t Naych
2 b
Dhalizrmee) L 0sscls 1,256,540 140636
Detizmead tanx diabilitic .03 15456
Diwfirtrod tax 3otz (oel) [RTTLH 1.281.81
Tihidused dn theBniement of profit anet loas as fallat Az 2t 30t Morch  As af 31si March
ke
Tax incomeiexpousa) during the yaor Bl [{LEN )]
Inznme 1oy, el of OC1 (17.98) 17.98
Defereed tog assels (nog) [T (8635
[n pursumse o seetfon 115BA4 of the Inoeme T Aal, 1551 natified by Gevemment of [ndin throwglh Toxnton Laws {Ammdmenty At 20159, b compary hos an imemeobie aption of shifting ka Javer
1 e feregoing Gy 10X ineentives. The Cocmmny 15 having Ul Thepraciaiion and wisilissd MAT Credit inaL 89 011 the veporting dafe and condinue 4 accumudaie MAT eeedil 1l FY

2324 10 T02Y-29. A3 per the projecions the company etpeeis 16 mnumon;ﬁuauha MAT Credin (MAT is dlipitde for sdjitment in |5 years. Lt iz difficolt to approprilely svidece i fam whic
vear ol ow souch deberred tax will be aned o tiew tax ke regime. The company s et everised this option duing the year the and comtinus 19 Teenguise tha lexas on feame ko yeur
ket Bt barch 2021 s per tha nommal 1e rate a1 which s ool expest b wver or settls the defered bz at this reparing dota. Company will raview fba ubeve pusition ol cach mportig dake.
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35. Employee benefits
A, Defined Contribution Plan
During the year, the company has recosnised the following amounts in statement of Profit & Loss:

For the year ended

For the yvear ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 )
Employer's contribution fo provident and other fund 161.06 12134 .
. 161.06 121.34

b. Defined Benefit Plans .

The Company have a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gramity Act, 1972, Every employee who has compleied five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. The level of benefits provided
depends on the member’s length of service and salary at the time of departure.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or joss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the plans: .

(). Liability for defined benefit obligation as at Balance sheet date:

As at March 31, 2021 As at Marel: 31,
2020
Present value of obligation of Gramity plan 297.00 171.04
Fair value of Plan assets - .
Net linbility recognised in balance sheet 297.09 171.04
{ii} Componcnis of defined benefit cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss nader Employee benefit Expense:
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost 42.71 26.50
Interest cost on benefit obligation 11.63 9.57
Caontribution paid front fie Fund - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net benefif expense 5434 2607
(iii}, Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as Follows:
Bl For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening defined henefit obligation 171.04 1253.00
Acquisition adjustment on intra-group transfer of employees 38.54 -
Joterest cost 11.63 9.57
Current service cost 4271 26.50
Benetiis paid (31.12) (34.66)
Re-measurements (gain)/loss 64,28 64.63
Closing defined benefit obligation 297.40% 171.04
{iv). Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening fair value of plan asset
Expected return

Benefits paid

Actuarial gains/(loss) on plan assets
Closing fair vaiue of plan asset
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{¥). The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company*s plans are shown below:

For the year ended  For the year eaded

Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020__ :

Driscount rate 6.80% 6.80% .

Future salary incresses 8.00% $.00% °

Retirement Age {Years) 58 Years 58 Years

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of 1ALM '

Apges Withdrawal Rate % .
LIpta 30 years 15% 15%

- From 31 to 44 vears 15% 15%
Above 44 years 15% 15%

Mortality eate 190% of IALM :

(v} A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significané assumption as at 31 March 2021 is as shown below:

For the year ended March 31, 2021

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Discount Rate Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% Increase 0.5% Deacrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation {6.84) 7.20 708 (6.79)
(vii) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumpéion as at 31 March 2020 is as shown below:

As at March 31, 2020 As af March 31, 2020

Discount Rate Future Salavy Inerease
Sensitivity level 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation {4.62) 4.86 373 (3.68)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that exteapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resuft of raasonablc changes in key

assumptions cccurring &t the end of the reporting period.

(viii} The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Gratuity
As af As at
31 March 2021 3 March 2020
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 79.78 . 20.8¢
Between 2-5 Years 100.27 60.20
Between 5-19 years 17.13 12.12
Beyond 10 years 95.92 68.74
Total expected pgymenis 297.0% 171.04

The average remaining working life of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the repating period is 23.47 years (31 March 2020 23 84 years).
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36, Commitments and contingencies 3

(a) Commitments
i Estimated amounnt of eontracts remaining to be executed on capital aceonnt and not provided for:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Estimated value of contracts (net of advances)

ining to be 1.on capital account 500.67 20502
and not provided for.

{b} Contingent liabilities

Farticulars . Asat3] March 2021 | As at 31 March 2020

Incone Tax

L 14.89 il
Incoms Tax demend being disputed by the Company, In respect

of azsessment year 2018-19, the Assessing Officer has made disallowance
of Rs 69.01 takhs to the assessed income in the order of assessment passed
ws 143(3) and refunded the balance amount of Rs 7.10 lacs. The Cormpany
has filed an appeal to the Commissioner of Income-1ax {Appeals) against
the said order on 7 April 2021.
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37 Related parly transaction detalls

In secordance wich the requirements of Ind AS - 24 Related Farty Diselosures’, names of the related parties, releted party rolanonship, transactions and oulstandmg halaes melwding
cammitments whare control exits ang with whom transaciions have taken place during reportad periods are:

Eulity with significant influonces

Ultimate halding Company Smart Global Corporate Holding Private Limited

Intermediate Holding Companl, Spice Connect Private Limited {Farmerly known as Sman Venlies Brivine Limied)y
Holding Company Digispice Technologies Limiled (Farmerly known as Spice Maobility Limned}
Subsidiarles Kimaan Expons Private Limiled

Other relnted pariies with whom transnctions have E-Anth Travel Solutions Private Limiicd

taken place doving the yenr

Follow sulsidiories New Spice Sales & Solutions Limited ( Formerly known as Spice Relail Limited)
3 (lobal Sorviees Pre, Limied (Fonnerly knuwn as 5§ GIC Ble Limited)
Beownrld SDN, BHD
PT Spice Digita} Indonesia
Omnia Pte. Limited
Windustan Retail Private Limited
8 Mobility Pre. Limited
Spice YAS {Africa) Pre. Limited
Digispice Nigeria Lid (Earlier ktiown as Spice Digial Migeria Limited)

Spice VAS Kerya Limied
Digispice Upanda Ltd{Earier kiown as Spiee VAS Unanda Liminsd}
Digispice Ghana Ltd(Earlier known as Spice YAS Chana Limited 3
Digispice Zambia Lid{Earlier known as Spicy VAS Zambia Limiied)
Digispice Tanzania Ltd{Earlier known as Spice YAS Tanzania Lunited)
Spice Digilal FZCO '
Ziiki Media SA{Pty.) Lid (Earlier known as Spiee VAS South Africa Ply Limitec) {eeused o
be a subsidiary w.e.f. 07ch february, 2019 and become Rssocimte aftee that)
Spice YAS RDC Limited '
Fast Track IT Solutions Privale Limited
Digispice MNepal Private Limilcd
£ Mabiliry (HK) Limited
Cellucom Retail India Private Limited
Wall Srreet Finance Limifed
Singlestop Evaluation Private Limited
Ononip Educalion 'vivate Limited
5 Global Innovation Centre Me Lid, Singnpere
Smart Bharat Private Limited {Farmerly known as Smart Entertamment Private Pamneily
Spice Solar Technology Private Limiled
Preference Holdings Private Limiled
Spice Global Ventures PTE. Limited
Sman Living Lifestyle Privale Limiled
Swan Studios Private Limited
Ace Airways Private Limited
Brillant Infocom Mrivate Limned
First Choice Enierprises Prvate Limied
Hallywood Travels Private Limited
f . : Integrated Global Solutions Private Limited
Jolly Trading & Merchandise Private Limited
MEM Limited
Modikem Private Limitad
Mudaliard: Sons Hotels Private Eimitad
Qasis Cingplex Privale Limited
Paradise Markcon Privale Limiled
Spice Impex Privme Limited
Susarita Promoters Privale Limited
Toplight Corperate Management Privaur Limited Wellwisher Holdims Private Limied
Zmnia Tubes & Tyres Private Limited :
* Bougainvillea Multiplex & Entartamment Centre PRvate Limited
Global Mobile Infrastructuce Private Limned
10 System Limdled
klodipur Devices Private Linjled
Spicebulls nvesuuents Limiled
Steréa Infratech Lamited
Modipur Selar Lamps Privere Limiied
Smart Dresris Private Limited
Modieiti Cinemas Private Limited
Bmart Yoga Private Limited
Smarl Innovatian Global PTE, Limited {farmerdy known as Annorcoal Technolowes I'TE
Limited)
Sotheby’s India Private Limiicg
wodipur Realty Privale Lamiied
Millenniuem Manpawer Services Private Limited
Spice Digilal Bahgladesh Limied
Wellwisher Holdings Privais Limitcd

Koy maongement prersannel {KMP) Mr. Bilip Kumsr Modi (Nan-exggutive Chanman)
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. Subr ian Murali {appointed as aclditions| dirccior w.c.f November 4. 20003
Mr. Swnan (hose Hezra (Independem Mirectar)
Mr.R h Venl (appoinied as Direetor w.e.f November 1, 2019}

Dr. Rashimi Aggnrwé] {Independent Director} (apponied wel harch (5, 2021)
Mr. Rejneesh Argra, Whole-thme Direstor and Chiel Innovation & Swategy Officer
{appointed as Directer we.fMoy 2, 2019 and Whole-time Ditegior and CT80O we I
September 1, 2020) ’

Mr. Sunil kumar Kapoor, Divecior and Cliel Financial Otger CAPpoinied as Dirgetor we f
May 2, 201%)

Ms. Bopha Bansal (Com; Secretary) lapy dw el Feb 3, 2000

Ms. Kokila (Compnay Seeretary) {Resigned w.e [ Augus| 23, 2009)

Mr. Saker Agarwal {Chiel Executive Officer} ( Resiwned w.e.f May |, 2014}

Mr. K. Jrin {Resigned we.T Junc 14, 2019y

Mr. Umanp Das (Resigned w.e.f August 7. 2019}
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a8 at and lor the year ended 31 Mareh 2021

Fov vhe yune ended

For the yonr emled

Partieolars Relnti i
clntionship 3] Mareh 2021 31 Marel 2020

Truval comnilasion carned

Digispice Technok Limited (Pormerly knewn as Spice Mobility Limited) alding Company - 6.3t
Spice Connect Frivele Limited Halding Company - 145
Wall Street Finance Limited Fellow Subsidiary . 070
Mr. Dilip Modi i KMP - 30
Rent paid j N
 Digispics Teohnologies Limited {Formerly known os Spice Mobility Limited) Helding Company 5163 12074
Kimaan Exponts Private Limited Subsidiary 57 50 -
Anterest Income j

Spiec Bulls 1 Lid Fellow Subsidiary - 139
Services received

Digispice Technologtes Linited {Fomerly knawn as Spice Mobility Limited) Holding Company 750 It 34
Interesd gxpense

Digispice Technologies Limitod (Formerly known as Spice Mobility Limited) Holding Company 210,98

ftental income

Digispics Technolopies Limited {Formerly known as Spice Mability Liniterl) Holding Campany 44182 4073
Remuneration paid (Shortterm employes benefits)

Mr. Sekat Agarwal KMP-CEQ - 333
AMr. Sunil Kumar Kapoor KMP- Director & CFO 6d. M 51.51
Mr. Rajneesh Arora KMP- Director & CiSO HI38 -
Ms. Kakila KMFLS - .07
| 5. Megha Bansal KMP-C§ L) 073
Bnd Debts Written off during the year

Sterea Infratech Limited ] Fellow Subsidiary 0.52
Smar Bharat Pvr. Lid. {Formerly Known As Smant Enlertai Pyi. Lid.} Fellow Subsidiary © - 262
Smartvalue Yentures Privawe Limited Fellpw Subsidi . 47
Mow Fpice Sales & Solutions Limitad {Farmerly known a5 Spice Retail Limited) Fellew Subsidiary - 1126
Spice Smart Solutions Limited Feliow Subsidiary - 31z
Dirgclor sitling fees

Mr.Umang Ctas EMP-Independent Director - 173
Mr. Sumsn Chose Hazra KiP-Independent Director 550 430
Dr. Reshimi Azaarwal KP-lndependent Director 0.50

Mr. Ramesh ¥enkotraman KMP-Indopendent Diregtor 525

Refmbursement of oy paid ta related ¢ i .

Digispice Teehnologes Limiled {Farmerly known as Spice Mobility Limited) Holding Company L4014 GE
Kimaan Exponts Private Limited Subsidiary 380 -
Payment on bihatl of related companies

E-Auth Travel Solutions Mivate Limited Fellow Subsidinry TR

Refmbursentent of exg received lrom related I

Digispice Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Spice Mobility Limited) Holding Company 3554 087
Loan/Advance Given during the year

Spies Bulls In: 1 Lad Fellow Subsidigry - oo
Lonn received back during the year ]

Spice Bulls Investment Lid Fellow Subsidiary 200.003
Muovemend in maney payalble on inpl Lion of Sch #

Dipispize Technolpgies Limited (Farmerty known as Spice bMobility Limited} Holding Company 79784 107347
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38

39

The following table provides a total emount of transactions that have been entered ihto with related partigs for the relevant financial vesr in continvation with the previous

page
Billing on behalf of Digispice Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Spice , 23275 3,693.58 ¢
Mobility Limited) Holding Carfipany
Payables
Digispice Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Spice Mobility Limited) - |Holding Company 21762 -
Kimaan Exports Private Limited Subsidiary 2335 -
Payables to KMP
M, Saket Aggrawal KMP-CEQ - -
Mr. Sunil Kvmar Kapoor KMP-Director & CFO 2.55 8.5¢
Mr. Rajneesh Arora KMP- Director & CISO 1741 -
Ms. Meghe Bansal KMP-CS D.66 0.68
Interest receivable :
Spice Bulls Invesiment Ltd Fellow Subsidiary - 16.87 |
| Interest acerued bat not due
Digispice Technologies Limited (Formerly kmown as Spice Mobility Limited) Holding Company 9546 | -
Reccivable against ticketing
Digispice Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Spice Mebility Limited) Holding Cormpany 3796 45,46
8pice Connect Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary - 10.48
‘Wal} Street Finance Limited Fellow Subsidiary - 0,25
Mr, Swbramanian Murali , KMP . 1.65 5.35
Mr. Dilip Modi KMP . - 5.35
Mr. Rajneesh Agoa EMP- Director & CISO 032 ] -
3
Director Fees Payable
M. Surman Ghosh Hezra KMP-Independent Director - 0,25
Losans/Money payable
Digispice Technologies Limited (Fotmerly known a§ Spice Mobility Limited) # Holding Company . 1,980.58 2.778.46
Caorporate Guarantee Given for
Digispice Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Spice Mobility Limited) # Halding Company 572.60 572,60

Note:

(i) Summarized details of remnuneration to Key Managerail Pevsonnel are as nnder: )
[Pariiculars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
|short term Benefits . _ ' 166.06 79.32
I8hare Based payments N -

The above remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for
the Company a3 a whole and charpe taken towards share based payments expense. .
Terms and conditions of transactions with velated parties:

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest Free and settlement occurs in cash. Terms and conditions for money payable to holding company on
implentation of scheme, refer note no. 39,

# Digispice Technologies Limited {Fermerly Spice Mobility Limited) (Ho]dmg Comparry) has obtained a bill discounting facility from Induslnd Bank Limited ("the bank"}
which is secured by the commercial property held by the Hotding Company in Dehradun, Though the bill discounting facility and the Dehradun property both have been
maved to the Rolding Company or implementation of Scheme of Arrangement (refer note no.39), the title deed of this property still remains in the name of Spice Money
Limited ("the Company"). Hence, on the request of bank, a corporate guarantee has been given by the Company to the bank.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in the imforation technology business rendering financial technology and ticket booking services. The board of directors of the Corapany which
have been identified as being the chief opevating decision maker {CODM), evaluate the Company's performance. Based on identical services the Company deals in, wtuch
have similar risks and rewards, the entire busitiess has been considered as a single segment in terms of Ind AS-102 on segment reporting,

Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 are not applicable,

Scheme of Arrangement

Pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement between Spice Moh1l1ty Litnited ("SML") and Spice Pigital Limited (“the Company™} and Spice 10T Solutions Limited and Mobisoc
Technology Private Limited and Spice Labs Private Limited and their respective sharcholders and creditors (“Scheme™) under Sections 230-232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, Priocipal Bench {(*NCLT") vide order dated May
20, 2019. DTS business is engaged in providing value added service to telecom operators and hardware & sofiware solutions. Accordingly, the Scheme of Arranpement has
been given effect from appointed date April 01, 2017 in eatlier vear.
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40 Share-Based Payments

Tha Company has an employee stock option plan namely, *SDL Employee Stock Option Plan 2015°.
The Company hes been party to 2 C hensive Scheme of Am b the C y, Spice Mobility Limied {“SML") and Spice WOT Salutions Limited and

Mobiscc Technoiogy Private Limited and Spice Laba Private Limited and their respective shmeimlrlers and creditors {“Selieme”) under Sections 230-232 and other spplicable
provisions of the Companics Aet, 2013. The Scheme is approved by the Hon'bls National Corpany Law Tribunal, Mew Dalhi, Prinnipal Benoh ("NCLT") vide urder dated

My 20, 2019 and is effective from June 1, 2019 and operative from April 1, 2017,

In May 2018, in order to motivate the employess nfﬂltFmter.h Business Undsrtaking {designed employeea’, the Momingtion and R jon Committee pramted Optiong
{"originally issued options"} fu the designatad to the Company’s stock option plan namely, “SDL Employee Stock Oplion Plan 2015 (‘ESQP 2015'). The
Options so graned will vest aver & period of 3 years Erum uw date of grand in the manner givea below:

Time Periad % of Optiony granted

1" Vesting : 40

2" Vesting ) i}

3" Vesting 30

The Company further granted options {"newdy issued options™) to employees in FY 2020-2F under ESOP 2015

The rneximum peciod for exercise of eptions ia 3 years from end of each vesting date. Bach option, when exercised, world be eonvered inte one fully paid-up equity share of
10 each of the Company. The options granted under ESOP 2015 carry no rights to dividends and no voling rights 1ill the date of exercise,

: The fair vatus of the share optiona is estimated at the grant date using Black and Scholes Model, taking into aceount the termis and conditions upon which the share options

were grmbed.
During the year, certain unvested options were sancelled on non-ful fillment afeertam vesting omdmms uoder ESOP 2015, As al the eod of the financial year, details and
is of the ling options are a5 follows;
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Ay at March 31, 2020
. Weighted Average * | Weighted Average
No. of Optiuns exercise price (T} No. of Options exercise prige {7}
. Ogtions oulstanding at the baginning of the year 4523279 : 3410 54.26,51 410
Options granted under ESCP 2015 (newly
issued opticns) 27,53 560 33,80 - -
Oplions ewercised during the year - - - : -
Qrptions cancelled during the year 6,84,360 ) 3410 9.03,240 34.10
Optiona expiced during the year - . - .
Optivns owisfanding 2t the end of the year-
neiginally iasued options 1835919 34,10 45.23,279 3410
Options outstanding at the end of the year-
newly issued oplions 27,53 560 33.80
Options exercizable at the end of the year - - - .
e o ol g | TE e
.‘_mplmns (years) (originally issued aptieng) Sy for 3ed vesting Sys or 3rd westing
*[Remaini fusl liEs of oulstard; A et -
options {years) {newly issued optiona) Pl "E“’S -
Sy for 3rd vesting - -
The fair value of cach option is eati d on the date of grant based on the following )
Pariicul, ESOF 2015 ESOP 2015
Oripinally Issued Options | Newly Jsswed Qytions
Dividend Yield (%) Nif Nil
d Life 2.5 yrs for 15t vesting 2.5 yrs far ist vesting
3.5y for 2nd vesting 3,.5yra for 2nd vesting
4.5 yrs for 3rd vesting 4.3 yr= for Jod vesting
[Risk fiee Inferest Rate(2:) 6.92% for 15t Vesting 5.28% for 1st Vesting
7.04% for 2nd vesting 56634 for 2nd vesting
7.21% for Ird Yesting 3.94% for 3rd Vesting
Volatility(%) 24.90% 31.35%
Market prica on date of grantfre-pricing (T) 34.10 33.20
|Fair Value Fer Oplion (Ra.) 9.81 1026




Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digital Limited)
Nates fo the standalone financial statements a5 at and Tor the year ended 31 March 20321
(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
. 41. Fair values
K Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s finaneial instruments: 7
Particolars As at 31. Mareh 2021
Carrying t Fair Value
Financial assets FVTPL FVOLT Amorflsed Cost
=Loaus (Non-current) - 83,53 - - 8353
E «Other financial assats (Non-Current) 195.00 - - . 195.00
-Trade mceivablag 628.14 - - 625.14
~Cash and cash equivalent 598932 - - 5,98032
~Bank balances other than above 943724 - - 9,437.24
-Laans (Current) ' . 7.42 - - 7.42
-Other financial assets {Current) 207931 - - 2,079.31
Total financial assets 18,419.96 - - 18,419.%6
Financial iabilities
-Lease liabilities (Mon-current) - -
-Borrowing (Carreat} 3,884.18 - - 3,884.18
-Trade payables 21801 - - 419.01
-Lease Libilities (Current) 64.92 64.52
i -Other financial liabilities (Current) 966.16 - - 966,16
; Total financial liabilities 5,734.27 - - - 5,734.27
. Asg at 31 March 2020
Particulars Carrying t Fair Value
Financial asseis FVTPL FvO(l Amprtised Cost
-Loans (Non-cureent) 41 88 - - 41.88
-Trads receivables 18271 - - 182,71
-Cash and cash equivalent 2,728.46 - - 272846
-Bank balances other than above . 1,439 86 . - - 1,439.86
-Loans (Current) 12,19 - - 12.19
-Other Ginancial assets (Current) 59375 - - 603.75
Total financial assets 5,098.85 - - 5,098.85
Finaneial Eabilities
-Dther financisl liabilities (Non-current) ' 64.92 - - 64.92
-Borrowing {Current) 995,62 - - 909 63
-Trade payables 35325 - - W3zZ3
-Leasg lizhilities {Current) 38914 - - 3891
-Olher_ financial habilifies {Current) 291060 - - 2,910,600

Tota! financial Iiahiljt_i_es 4,427.30 - - 4,427,230
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42.Fair volue hierarchy

The company uses the Following hierarchy for detacmining mmd disclosieg the fair value of finaneial 1 by valuation technique:

Leveal 1: quotad (unadjnared) prices in sctive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other technigues for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair valug are observable, either direstly or indirectly.
Level 3; techniques that nee inputs that have a signiifcant effect on the vecorded fair value that are not based on observable markat data.

The Company has aseessed that the far value of irade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade payables and other
current financial Linbilities approximate to their camying amounts latgely due to the short-torm itics of thesc instr Where such ilems ar¢ non-current in nature, the
same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined present value, Similardy, unguoted equity instruments in subsidiary company and associate company has been
considered at cost less impairement, if amy, and has been excluded in the fair value measerement disclosed below.

The fair value of the financial assets and lighilives is included at the amount at which the i it could ba exch
then in @ forced or liquidation sale, Tha fallowing methods and asannptions were used to sstimata the fafr valoes:

d in a current bransaction between wilking parties, other

- Bomrowings are evalvated by the Company based on parasaeters such as interest rates and specific country nisk factars.

- The Fair vahue of other financial liabilities, obligations under Finance leases, is estimated by discounting fmee: cash flows using rates cuerently available for debt on sivilar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

- The fair values of the FVTPL quated financial investments are derived from quosed merket prices in active markeis.
- The fair values of the Company”s imercst-bearing borrowings and koans are determined Sy using DCF method nsing discount rate that reflects the {ssucr’s botrowing rate as
at the end of the reporting period. No own non-~ performance risk as at Maych 31, 2021 was assessad.

Fi ial Ingtr ts by Category
. 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2026
Financial nsseis FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair Valne FVTPL Amaortised Cost Fair Valne
-Loans {Nen-Current) - 83.53 8353 41.88 41,88
-Other fi ial nssets {Non-Current) 193.00 195.00 - -
-Trade receivables 62214 628.14 182.71 182.71
-Cash and cash equivalent - 5,989.32 5,989.32 2,728.46 272846
-Bank balances other than above - 043724 043724 1,439.86 1,439.86
-Loans (Coarront) - 7.42 742 12.19 12.19
-Oher fi ial assets {Current) - 207931 2,07%.3L 693.75 693.73
Total f lal assets - 18,419.96 158,413.56 5,098,858 5,095.95
H ial liabilitics
-Lease Lighilities {Mon-current) - - - 64,92 -
-Borrowing {Current) - 3,884.18 3,684.18 999,62 999,62
~Trade payabl - 819.0] 515.01 393.25 393.25
~Lease liabilities {Cuerent) - 64.92 5452 58.91 -
“|-Other financial liabitiies (Current) - 066,16 96616 2,910,650 2,010.60
Total financial liabilities - 5.73d.37 £,734.27 4,427.3 £303.47
The follawing table provides the fair value messurament hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value ement hieravchy for assets ns at 31 March 2021
Fair value messurement using
Toml Onieted prices in Significant Sigmificant
ective markets (Level  observable inpuis unvbservable
1 (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
-Loans (Non-Crrrent) 83.93 - 83.59
~Loatis (Current) 742 - 742
Total 285,05 - 23395
Quantitative disclosnres fair value measurement hievarchy for liabilities as a¢ 31 Maveh 2021:
Frir value e eot using
Total Quoted prices in Significant Signifieant
active markets (Level  observable inpnts unphservable
n (Level 2) Jinputs (Level 3)
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs,
~Lease Ligbility 64,52 - 6492
Total 654.91 - 64,92

There have been no transfers between Leve! 1 and Level 2 during the year.




Queniitative disclosnres falr value mensurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2020:

Fir vaiue ement using
Total Quuoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets (Level  observable inputs vnobservable
1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Rs. Rs Rs. Rs.
-Loens {Mon-Current) 41,88 . . 41.88
-Loans {Current} 1Z.19 _ - 12.19
54.07 - - 54,07
Quantitative disclosures Eair value messurement hiersrchy for linbilities as at 31 March 2020: :
Falr value ement nsing
Total Quoted prices in Signiftcant Significant
active markets (Level  ahservable inputs unobservable
1) {Liavel 2} inputs (Level 3)
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs,
-Lease Liability 123.83 _ . 123.83
123.53 - - 123.63

There have been no transfers betweaen Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.




A i

Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Splee Digital Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

43. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial Lisbilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is fo finatice amd
support the operations of the Company. Thé Company’s principal financial assets incfude trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank belances, loans
and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FYTPL investmenis and investment in subsidiacy companies
measured at cost.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's ;v,enjor management advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk povernance framework. The senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected

- by market rigk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTPL investments. Company is not affected by commodity risk and currency risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debi are all constant.

The analyses exclude the impact of movemenis in market variables on the carrying velues of gramity and other post- retirement obhgaucms and provisions.

The foltowing assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant prbﬁl or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective merket risks.
This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposute to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company®s short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates
and Joan advanced by Company to fellow subsidiaries and a body corporate.

The Senior Management of the Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate bomowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The foll.owing table demenstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected, with all other variables
held constans, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, present rate is FOR interest rate plus 1% ( 31 March
202{x. FDR interest rate plus 1%), the impact of change in tate is as follows:

In the current year, interest raie sensitivity is calculated on borrowing and interest bearing deposits fiom customers while In the previous year it was calculated
on borrowing, The impact of change in interest rate is given below:-

Increasef(De
Increasefde crease) in
crease im profit before
hasis points tax
31 March 2021 M {8.52)
9.52
31 March 2020 50 (5.00}

5.00




Spice Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digital Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021
{(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated) '
Equity price risk

The Company's invesiment in wnlisted equity securities are mainly in subsidiary companies which is susccpt.iblc to intpairement test as applicable. The
Company does not engage in active trading of equity instruments. The Board of Directors of Comgpany reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

Other risk/inherent risk .
The Company operaies in financial services sector and manages vety high volume of transactions, which have the inherent risk of funds management in
comparison to othcr services sector.

Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial insirument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including Loans, deposits with
banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

The Company has used a practical expedicnt and analysed the recoverable amount of the reccivables on an individual basis. The Company provide for
expected loss allowance for financial assets based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking information's.

The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables for cusiomets for the year ended 31
March 2021: .

Weighted-

Gross Carrying Lass Credit-
Rs.In Lak?s Amounty ]i::rl:g:e Allowanee  Impaired
Not Due - 0% - No
1- 94 days 567.09 0% 0.05 Mo
91-180 days 47.69 4% 3,08 No
181-270 days _ - % - No
271-360 days 0.03 % 0.03 No
More than 360 days 0.04 100% .04 No
614.85 120

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of receivables
For the year ended March ¥or the year ended March
31. 2021 31, 202¢

Balance at beginning of the year _ - -
Add: Provided during the year 220 -
Eess: Reversals of provision - -
Less: Amounts written off - -
Balance at the end of the year 220 -

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established ctedit policy, procedures and conrol relating fo customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an éxtensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment and
also based upon agreement/terms with respective customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. Ia addition, a large number of minor receivables are
grouped inte homegenous groups and assessed for impaivment collectively. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the
conceniration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in Jargely
independent markess.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplns funds are made only with spproved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. All investments are reviewed by the Company's board of directors on a quartetly basis.
The limits are sét to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

* Lignidity risk

The Comipany monitors its risk of a shortage of finds vsing a liquidity planning tool.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bill discounting facility. The Corpany
assessed the concentration of risk with respect 1o refinancing its debt and concluded it to be fow. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of
funding and debt matyring within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

ntractial nndiscounted payments.
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Less than 3 3te12

On demand months  months  1to 3 years Total

As at 31 March 2021
Borrowing (Non-current) ¢ -
Borrowing 3,884.18 - - - 3,884.18
Trade payables ' - §15.01 : - 815.01
Lease liability (current and non-current) - 15.64 4028 64.92
Other financial liabilities - 966.16 - - 966.16

3,584.18 1,800.81 49.28 - 5,734.27
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowing{Non-cusrent) _ - - - - -
Borrowing : 999,62 - - - 999,62
Trade payables - 39325 - - 393.25
Lease liability {cwrrent and non-cument) - 14,19 44,72 6492 - 123.83
Other financial liabilities - 2,910.60 - - 2,910.60

999.62 3,318.04 44,72 64.92 4,427.30

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of coumterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical vegion, or have
coonomic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affiected by changes in ¢conomic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of &
diversified portfolio. Identified concentratiotis of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

1

Collateral

The Company has pledged part of its short-term deposits with banks as margin money against issuance of bank guaraniees in order to fulfil the collateral
requirements for its various contracts and for pre paid instrument business. At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the fair values of the short-ierm deposits
pledged were INR 36.92 Lakhs and INR 43.18 Lakhs respectively. The counterparties have an obligation to return the deposits to the Company upon
settlement of the obligations under the contracts. There are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the wse of coliateral.
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44. Capital management

Far the purposs of the Company’s capifal management, capital incindes issued equity capital, share premium and all ofher equity reserves aitributeble to the-equity holders of

the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder vaiue.

Tl Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To meintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjuest the dividend payinent to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Compaty monilors eapital
using a gearing ratio, which is vet debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company®s policy is to keep the gearing ratio less than 73%. The Company includes within wet
deht, interest bearing loans and horrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Rs. Rs,
Bomowing 388418 989 62
Less: cash and cash equivalents : {5,980.32) {2,72R.46)
Net Diebt (A) {2,105.14) {1,728.84)
Equity share capital 4,349.49 4.345.15
Other equity . 3,895.09 2,585.12
Total equity {B) 8,044.58 6,930.27
Net Debt 10 Equity Ratlo Nl Nil

1n order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amonpst other things, aims to ensure that it mests financial covenanis atiached fo the inerast-
bearing lpans and borrowings that define capital swucture requirerents. Breaches in meeting fhe financial covenants would penmit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches i the financial covenants of eny interest-bearing loans and borrewing in the current period.

45. Group infermation

Information about subsidlaries, associates and joint veniure
The consolidated finangial statements of the Group includes sobsidiaries listed in the able below:

Prapartion of ownership

Principal place of Method of acconnting
Name of subsidiary Company business As at March 31, As at March 31, of investment
2121 20249
Kimaan Exports Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% Cost
46, Disclosures required under Section 136(4) of the Compaxies Act 2013
Detgils of Investments made ( At cost )
_ Particulors Onpening investments Investments made  lovestment sold Closing investments

during the yeay during the year

K.imaan Exports Private Limited 6,276.00 - - 6,276.00
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47

Details of dues to micro enterprises or small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 as identified by

the management of company

Particulars

As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,

2020

- The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of
the year

- Principal

49.49

Nil|

- Interest

Nil

Nil

- The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year '

Nil

Nil

- The amount of interest due and payable for the period (whete the
principel hes been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not
paid)

Nil

- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid af the end of
accounting year; and .

Nil

Nil

- The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, ugtil such date when the interest dues &s above are actually paid
to the small entevprise, for the putpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23

Nil

Nil
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Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 33 March 2021
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49, Significant acconntlng judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s separate financial statements requires management to meke judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amoumts of revemses, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
ligbilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amoulit
of assets ot liabilities affected in Rature periads.

A) Taxes

The Company recopnizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company respective
companies in the Comparry which has reognised MAT credit will pay normal income tax during the specified pericd ie. the period for which
MAT credit is aflowed to be carried forward.

The tax assets of Rs 949.29 Lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs 1081.11 Lakhs) recognised by the Compary as MAT Credit Entitlement under'
Defarred Tax assets'in respect of MAT payment for earlier years, represents that portion of MAT liability which can be recovered and set off in
subsequent years based on the provisions of Section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1561, The management based on the present trend of
profitability and also the future profissbility projections, is of the view that there would be sufficient taxable income in foreseeable future, which
will enable the Company to wilize MAT credit assets.

Deferrad tax assets are recoghised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avaitable against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant managerent judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be racogmsed
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

B} Defined beneflt plans (gratuity bemeflis)

The cest of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actunrial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future satary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its Jong-term nature, &
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to chenges in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter tost subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriste discount tate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of govemment bonds in currencies consistent with the curencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation,

() Fair value measarement of financial lnstrmments

When the fair values of financial assets smd finencial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques inciuding the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
chservable marcets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required i establishing fair values. Judgments inchde
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instrumerits.

D} Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intengible asset under development for a praject in accordance with the accounting poticy. Initial capitalisation of
costs is based on management’s judgment that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project
has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model. In derermining the amounts to be capitalised,

management makes assumptions regarding the expected fiture cash generation of the project, discoumt rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits.

E} Useffal lives of depreciable assets
The management estimates useful lives and estimated residual value of depreciable assets based on technical evaluation. These assumptions are
reviewed st each reporting date.

F) Provision and contingent Hability :
On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third partics and other contingencies. For contingent losses that ate considered
probable, an estimated loss is recarded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for
but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial stetements. Contingencies the likelitood of which is remote ave not disclosed in the
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

G} Investment in equi€y instruments of subsidiary companies
During the vesat, the Company zssessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiary compmnies carried at cost Tor impaimment testing.
Detailed analysis has been camied out.on the firture projections and the Compeny is confident that investments do not require any impairment.

H) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts and advances




g

Trade receivables do not carry any inferest and are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
itrecoverable amounts. Individual trade reccivables are written off when management deems them not to be colleotible. Impairment is made ot
the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected 1ife of the financial assets.

1) Share based payments

The Compeny measures the cost of equity-settled fransactions with employess using Black Scholes model 1o determine the fair valus of options.
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the: most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent
on the terms and canditions relating to vesting of the grant. This estimate also requires detenmination of the mest appropriate mpufs to the
valuation model including the expected Jife of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making asspmptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions arc disclosed in Note 4.

J) Lease liability and Right of Use assets :

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires,
significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgerent in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

§0, The Company has carried out its inftial assessment of the likely impact on econamy environment and finaticial risk becasue of Covid-19
Pandemic. The management believes that there may not be significant adverse impact of Covid-1% pandemic on the financial pesition and
performance of the Company in the long-term. The Company has reviewed the entire porifolio of its receivables and investment on a
conservative basis and do not expect any material impairment in value of receivables and investment. The Company estimates to recaver the
carrying amount of all its assets including receivables in the ordinary course of business and expect no Tiquidity constraints in discharging its

obligations, based on information availeble on current economic conditions. These estimates are subject to unertainty and may be affected by
the severity and duration of pandenic. The Comparty is continuousky monitoring any material change in future ecomomic conditions.

51. The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary but company has not prepared consolidated financial statements. The Holding Campay
prepares the consolidated finemcial statements which are filed with Registar of Companies. The Compeny has ohtained no objection from its
share holders except the Group Company share holders in this regard.

%2, The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform current year classifications.
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